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IMPORTANT NOTICE

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Directors”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to Heng Xin China Holdings Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE CHART
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Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 9 September 2002 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The Company’s shares were listed
on GEM on 16 April 2003. The following is a corporate chart of ET
the Company and its principal subsidiaries up to the date of this °
report.
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STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

{T Ei IS -I& EFE ﬂ: i

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the financial year ended 30 June 2010, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$653.3 million (2009:
HK$339.4 million) and a profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$181.0 million (2009: HK$110.7
million). The basic earnings per share was approximately HK11.96
cents, compared to approximately HK11.28 cents of the last financial
year. The directors recommend the payment of a bonus share
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 on the basis of
one bonus share at par for every thirty (30) existing shares of the
Company held to shareholders (2009: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

Specializing in advanced encrypted integrated circuits and wireless
digital audio integrated circuits and the integrator of its system
(equipment) solutions, the Group has continued to focus its business
on and increase its capital investment in the technology products of
advanced encryption integrated circuits and in the digital television
broadcasting industry in mainland China, as well as market
development and promotion in this financial year, for which the Group
has achieved highly satisfactory highly results.

In respect of the wireless digital television business, in order to
satisfy the substantial demand for the Group’s products and
services as provided by the Group from the massive end-users
and the market, the Group has increased in the financial year its
capital investment in the digital terrestrial television business. The
Group also expanded its systems and equipment integration
services in the provinces with which contracts had been entered
into, and has established a sophisticated business operation
model, which builds a stable customer base and partners
relationship in respect of the industry chain, creating a
advantageous environment for the Group’s business development
and the economy of scale.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ITHRARBES

As a renowned and large-scale designer and supplier of wireless
audio base band integrated circuits and information security
technology products, the Group has continued to explore new
customer markets during the financial year. In addition to the
consolidation and expansion of the existing customer base, the
Group increases its market share, and supplies wireless
multimedia transmission base band integrated circuits, which was
developed from in-depth research and development, and a series
of information security products for various reputable domestic
and overseas customers, establishing a certain level of customer
base while achieving economies of scale.

In adapting to the policy of the integration of the three networks
of broadcasting digital TV business in China and to accommodate
the huge market demand, the Group planned and initiated the
market expansion activities for the business of the digital cable
television two-way conversion in respect of the integration of the
three networks during the financial year. The Group proceeded
with the development of partnership businesses in the contracted
regions and established the patterns of operation and earning
for developing the digital cable television, thereby building the
foundation for sustainable development of the Group.

The Group will adapt to and capture the immense domestic
business opportunities in China by coping with the domestic
demand and development of the broadcasting digital television
business in the mainland, further strengthening and exploring
the market of wireless digital television and digital cable television
two-way conversion business, developing relative businesses and
providing services of relative businesses in order to achieve
economies of scale. The Group will continue to maintain and
enhance the leading position in the areas of information security,
and in supplying products and solutions to the gaming, PC
markets products and multimedia transmission, and identify new
markets for new source of growth in revenue.
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STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ITHRARBES

Capitalizing on the vast domestic business opportunities in China,
the Group’s aggressive market expansion, effective and
sophisticated patterns of business operation and earnings, rapid
growth in the favourable partners relationship and customer base,
the Group will be able to achieve a more sustaining and
competitive foundation of business operation with more
comprehensive benefits, which the Board expects will bring about
long-term and greater benefits to the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to extend our sincere gratitude to our customers, business
partners and shareholders for their continuous and valuable
support to the Group. | would also like to express my heartfelt
appreciation to all our dedicated staff for their hard work and
efforts that have contributed to the sustained growth of the Group
over the year.

Xiao Yan
Chief Executive Officer

27 September 2010
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R

THE GROUP

In the current financial year, the Group’s principal businesses
in various fields recorded rapid development and profits.
Based on its proprietary core technology accessed to
television broadcasting field in Hunan and Hubei provinces,
the Group has began promoting wireless digital terrestrial
television service since 2009. Coincidentally with the year
the PRC government implements the policy that
predisposes to terminate the analog television signal, local
television operators therefore focus on the development of
their businesses in rural areas, which are not covered by
the cable television service as the urban cities. The Group’s
businesses have developed rapidly since. Currently, the
Group’s core business includes four parts: wireless digital
terrestrial television equipment integration business in rural
areas, digital cable television two-way conversion business
in urban areas, encryption integrated circuit business and
wireless digital audio integrated circuit business. The
businesses are mainly delivered through PRC television
broadcasting communications network to provide brand
new services for their customers.

At the beginning of 2010, riding on the national “three-
network convergence” policies, the Group has accessed
to the cable television segment by virtue of its good
cooperation developed with the provincial television
operators in 2009. The Group has successfully entered into
business cooperation agreements with television operators
in Nanchang, Jiangxi and Anhui provinces respectively in
relation to the construction and development of digital cable
television two-way conversion and value-added business.
At this point, the Group has rapidly transformed from a
relatively basic projects integrator at the beginning of the
business reorganisation into a company with dual role in
integration and sustaining operation.

In the two years since completion of the business
reorganisation, the Group’s business scope has increased
significantly. Profit attributable to the shareholders has
increased to about HK$181 million for the current year,
which reflects the Group management’s indulgence to its
mission to maximise shareholders’ value and achieve
maximum benefits for the listed company.
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The Group’s major markets are in favourable condition and
the potential is huge. The promotion of the “three-network
convergence” policy will mean the television broadcasting
industry will get substantive leap in the next few years.
According to the forecasts of the industry experts that under
the “three-network convergence” policy, the market size in
the television broadcasting will near RMB trillion. The
Group’s wireless digital terrestrial television market will also
expand substantially, resulting from the push of the
television broadcasting industry nationally. Before the
analog television terminates in 2015, it is expected that
the wireless digital terrestrial television market size will near
RMB100 billion.

The Group has developed its new businesses in just over
two years. Historical financial track record for investors’
reference is limited and the Group is a new enterprise in
the television broadcasting industry. However, the Group
has emerged as the sole PRC state standards wireless
digital television CA card suppliers and the most powerful
domestic technology design and construction of wireless
television solution provider. China has the world’s biggest
television network and the largest number of subscribers.
The Group is operating in an industry with strong market
demand and currently at the broadcasting television
business transformation movement, under the tight
development requirements by the state of digitalisation of
the television network and the support of the “three-network
convergence” national policy. The Group is in a unique
position to reap strong profits as an equipment supplier
and operator yielding both short-term and long-term gains.
The Group possesses numerous suppliers’ support,
competent professional management team, and achieved
market pioneer status particularly in the central China
broadcasting region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group has been focusing
on the following core technologies and/or business areas:

Wireless digital terrestrial TV network
equipment integration business

The wireless digital terrestrial television network equipment
integration business, which leverages on the Group’s key
technology — 32-bit security integrated circuits — that
guarantees maximum security of Conditional Access (“CA”)
system to ensure the security, reliability and efficiency of
the wireless digital terrestrial television integrated operating
network offered by the Group.

During the year under review, the Group has developed
and implemented the provision of technology and
equipment integration for wireless digital terrestrial television
in Hunan and Hubei provinces. The optimisation of wireless
digital terrestrial television network and the growth of end
users in Hunan and Hubei provinces are much affected by
the rainy season in southern part of China, and the volume
of product supplied to Hunan and Hubei provinces during
the fourth quarter decreased significantly over the third
quarter of the financial year, which affected the sales of
wireless digital terrestrial television project, and thus the
Group’s business for the fourth quarter was adversely
impacted.
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Digital cable TV two-way conversion
equipment and services

Following the continuous progress of the integration of the
telecommunication network, broadcasting television
network and internet platforms (Z#34 —) throughout
China, the network groups in various cities and counties in
China have already started to upgrade their networks and
investment in terminal products. The Group seized the
opportunities in the fourth quarter of the financial year to
provide customers with module products of over HK$100
million, which are applicable to two-way conversion project,
in view of the practical needs of customers and the Group’s
research and development strengths, which brought
promising benefits to the Group.

Pursuant to the business cooperation agreement in relation
to the cable television network in Jiangxi Province, PRC,
the Group will provide digital cable television two-way
conversion equipment and services and jointly develop and
operate the value-added services for 15 years in return for
revenue sharing in Jiangxi. The initial subscriber base under
the agreement is approximately 0.5 million at present and
is expected to reach 1.5 million for the Nanchang area alone
and allow the Group to gain entrance to the TV value-added
business, to share net revenues ranging from 50% to 70%
on the new value-added services.

Pursuant to the business cooperation agreement in relation
to the cable television network in Anhui, Province, PRC,
the Group will provide digital cable television two-way
conversion equipment and services and jointly develop and
operate the value-added services for 12 years (from the
launch of the value-added services in each administrative
areas) in return for revenue sharing in Anhui. The subscriber
base under the Agreement covering Huainan City, Huaibei
City, Shuzhou City and Bozhou City in Anhui Province is
approximately 1 million. After the conversions for these
cities, the conversion and business cooperation will be
extended to cover the whole of Anhui Province with a total
coverage of approximately 4 million subscribers expected
within two years. The Group will also share net revenues
ranging from 40% to 70% on the new value-added services.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R

The implementation and development of the Group’s digital
cable television two-way conversion and value-added
business require significant capital investment. For instance,
building a network of two-way conversion in the scale of
millions of users needs approximately RMB400 million, of
which part of the funding can be provided by the equipment
suppliers according to the supplier contracts. A terminal-
or television set-top box on average ranges between
RMB400 (SDTV set-top box) to RMB600 (HDTV set-top
box) per end-user subscriber. The partial investments in
the terminal set-top boxes can be returned in full or by
installments after the end-users subscribe the cable
television value-added services, while the partial
investments in the network construction recover
acceleratedly as the volume of end-users increases.

Information safety technology
business

The Group maintained satisfactory sales performance in
system integration business, especially in remote medical
project. The Group also got new breakthroughs in the
energy saving and emission reduction technologies. New
software products had been launched for sale and will
generate considerable revenue. The Group also increased
its investment in technical development and technical
services projects. Thanks to the development results
contributed by external parties, the Group strengthened
its research and development strengths and actively
explored new customers in order to maintain a steady and
sustainable growth of our business. The Group not only
increased the investment in research and development on
new products and technologies in terms of manpower,
material and financial resources, but also leveraged on the
development results of external parties to fulfill the needs
of customers and reinforce the developmental upgrade of
its products, in order to maintain its leading position in
technologies and secure the sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Wireless multimedia transmission
baseband integrated circuits

The Group is an integrated supplier of wireless short-range
products from chips to solutions. The segment includes
the home wireless multimedia products, such as wireless
stereo headphones and education products; products for
games and PC market and wireless communication
products. Since the world has been recovered from the
global financial crisis, the export market of the Group
rebounded. Significant increase in the export sales in the
fourth quarter was resulted when compared with that of
the third quarter, and the project approval and initiation has
been increased two to three folds. The market share
increased following a growth in the number of domestic
and overseas customers in cooperation in these few years,
which provided the Group with an effective protection and
profit driver for high revenue for the years to come.

PROSPECTS

With the Chinese government’s positive attitude and the
implementation of proactive policies, China maintains
steady economic growth. By seizing the opportunity of the
integration of the telecommunication network, broadcasting
television network and internet platforms, the Group studied
actively the developmental upgrade of self-developed
products which cater for the network integration and carried
out technological research and development of system
integration products in order to provide customers with
superior services and meet their utmost need. Due to the
three networks integration, the Group expects to generate
sustainable new revenues from its digital cable television
two-way conversion business.

For the wireless digital terrestrial TV projects, the Group
proactively optimized the network services for customers
and provided the required network and terminal products.
For the systems integration projects, it is expected that
the Group will benefit from the products required by three
major network operators, namely China Telecom, China
Mobile and China Unicom. In addition, the government and
group purchases will generate satisfactory revenue for the
Group. The Group will continue to explore new customers
base and develop quality technical services in order to
maintain a better profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The orders for the wireless digital audio integrated circuit
products will commence its mass production in the coming
quarters and many enterprises will explore new profit drivers
after the financial crisis. The number of customers of the
Group in the export segment has been significantly
increased. It is expected that the Group can greatly expand
its market share. Apple accessories project will become a
highlight to our business growth. The Group has been
planning to explore the domestic market to expand the
domestic market share before it suffered from the adverse
impact of the export market, and has achieved remarkable
results in terms of its market share and sales volume. While
commencing its mass production for the projects of two
domestic listed companies in the coming quarter, it will be
a great start for the domestic sales market. The Group will
strive to enter into new consumer and automotive electronic
markets in order to bring a new and rapid profit driver for
the Group.

The Group will strive to achieve ten million subscribers
digital cable television value-added business and to cover
6 to 8 provinces in the wireless digital terrestrial television
network integration business in the next few years.

The Group targets to:
o become China’s largest wireless devices integrator,
it is expected that the sales scope of equipment to

achieve RMB20 billion in the next five years;

. become China’s largest two-way multi-facet value
added service operator;

. become China’s largest wireless digital terrestrial
television service operator; and

o maintain superior profit level and over the next five
years the total profit will grow significantly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MHRE

For the year ended 30 June (HK$’000)
BEXA=THLEE (T#ET)

Turnover EXE 339,365 653,260 +92%
Gross profit E7 163,348 263,038 +61%
Profit from operations K E=avil 127,833 215,424 +69%
Profit before taxation B 7 A1 4 7 123,435 204,375 +66%
Profit for the year FREF 118,006 195,645 +66%
Profit attributable to equity holders RIERSA ARIEET 110,698 181,042 +64%
Earnings per share (HK cents) FRAEF (BL) 11.28 11.96 +6%
Dividend per share BRES - 1 bonus share for -

every 30 existing

shares

RBRBERD

KB AR AL

TURNOVER BY SEGMENT EEBTHE

Wireless digital audio
integrated circuits

BRBEMLEHATH |

Encrypted integrated circuits
| maws

16% 17%

Digital cable television
two-way conversion

| BB REnRE .
Contracts for wireless
digital terrestrial television
HWEESBEUER AN |
Segment
2
Digital cable
Wireless digital television two-way Wireless
terrestrial television conversion Encrypted digital audio
network equipment equipment integrated integrated
integration & services circuits circuits Total
PHERBUER AREVEREM BR
BEREER HERERERS mEShH BUFRCH @it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THET THT TR THT
Sales of goods EmiEE 333,205 103,654 68,542 89,137 594,538
Service income FRA A - - 39,576 19,146 58,722
Total Bt 333,205 103,654 108,118 108,283 653,260
% to total HBEESE

turnover B 51% 16% 16% 17% 100%
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OVERVIEW OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥®ZE&E#HE

As at 30 June (HK$000)
RAR=1H (FERn)

Inventories FE 4,004 2,889 -28%
Trade receivables FE U ER 3K 228,777 452,126 +98%
Prepayments, deposits and BRTE e R

other receivables Hiv UGB 21,923 29,348 +34%
Cash at bank and in hand BOERERE 92,410 65,401 -29%
Others Hith 1,974 1,993 +1%
Current assets FBEE 349,088 551,757 +58%
Property, plant and equipment Mm% BEREE 1,026 7,187 +273%
Goodwill S 284,846 753,146 +164%
Intangible assets EWEE 18,415 34,107 +85%
Trade receivables U ER 3K 48,845 227,804 +366%
Non-current assets ERBDEE 354,032 1,022,244 +189%
Trade payables R EER 168,746 223,689 +33%
Other payables and accruals HbENTERENER 9,232 38,173 +313%
Loan from a sharsholder RE—BREZER 30,000 30,000 -
Tax payables B E 5,549 14,329 +158%
Others Hit 78 345 +342%
Current liabilities b= 213,605 306,536 +44%
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBDAE 489,515 1,267,465 +159%
Non-current liabilities kRBEE 3,062 179,847 +58 times %
Net Assets EERE 486,453 1,087,618 1.2 times %
Capital and reserves BEXRE 477,024 1,058,043 1.2 times fZ
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 9,429 29,575 2.1 times &
Current ratio RE = 1.6 1.8
Gearing ratio EXBELE 0.06 0.03
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$653.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 92% as compared to
HK$339.4 million in the last financial year. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company was approximately HK$181.0
million, compared to approximately HK$110.7 million in the last
financial year. Basic earnings per share was approximately
HK11.96 cents, compared to approximately HK11.28 cents for
the last financial year.

Turnover

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the turnover of the Group
was principally derived from the following business segments.
All segments contributed significant increases in turnover when
compared to the previous year.

(i) Wireless digital terrestrial television network equipment
integration business

The turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 generated
from the wireless digital terrestrial television network
equipment integration business amounted to approximately
HK$333.2 million (2009: HK$223.9 million) or approximately
51% (2009: 66%) of the total turnover.

(ii) Digital cable television two-way conversion equipment
and services business

The turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 generated
from the digital cable television two-way conversion
equipment and services business amounted to
approximately HK$103.7 million (2009: Nil) or approximately
16% (2009: Nil) of the total turnover. This segment of
business started to contribute to the Group in the fourth
quarter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(iii) Encrypted integrated circuits and the derived integrated
business

The turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 generated
from the encrypted integrated circuits and the derived
integrated business amounted to approximately HK$108.1
million (2009: HK$54.0 million) or approximately 16% (2009:
16%) of the total turnover.

(iv) Wireless digital audio products business

The turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 generated
from the wireless digital audio products business and the
related technical services amounted to approximately
HK$108.3 million (2009: HK$56.8 million) or approximately
17% (2009: 17%) of the total turnover.

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin of the Group was approximately 40.3% (2009:
48.1%).

Other Income

Other income amounted to approximately HK$1.1 million (2009:
HK$11.6 million), representing a drop of about 91% when
compared to that of last financial year. The drop is attributable to
the fact that no gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
was recorded during the financial year as all the available-for-
sale investments have been disposed of in the previous financial
year. For the same reason, no impairment loss on/loss on disposal
of available-for-sale investments was recorded in the financial
year compared to approximately HK$3.0 million loss was
recorded in the last financial year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses were approximately HK$44.7 million
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010, compared to
approximately HK$44.9 million for the financial year ended 30
June 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERRETH
Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$11.0 million (2009:
HK$2.0 million), of which approximately HK$9.2 million represents
non-cash effective interest expenses on convertible notes issued
by the Company before their full conversions.

Trade receivables

Total trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$679.9
million (2009: HK$277.6 million). The trade receivables and their
recoverability resulting from the cooperation of the Group and
the provincial television broadcasting operators follow with the
business practices of domestic business enterprises. To ensure
the recovery of these trade receivables, the Group has taken the
appropriate measures as follows: (1) the Group and local
television broadcasting operators has established joint
management account; and (2) the Group’s encrypted integrated
circuit CA system can effectively control the television signals
transmitted to fee paying subscribers imposing a cross check
on the operators.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had 117 full-time employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC (2009: 83). The total employees’
remuneration, including that of the Directors, amounted to
approximately HK$12.4 million (2009: HK$23.6 million). The
decrease in staff costs recorded for the financial year was primarily
attributable to the inclusion in the accounts of share based
payment of approximately HK$13.6 million related to the grant
of the share options under the share option scheme of the
Company in the last financial year.
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The Group continues to provide remuneration packages to
employees according to market practices, their experience and
performance. Remuneration policy is basically determined with
reference to individual performance as well as the financial results
of the Group. Remuneration to staff will be revised from time to
time when warranted considering the performances of staff. Other
benefits include medical insurance scheme and contribution of
statutory mandatory provident fund for the employees. The Group
also has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company. There
has been no major change in staff remuneration policies during
the year ended 30 June 2010.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed its operations with internally
generated cash flows. As at 30 June 2010, the cash and bank
balances of the Group amounted to approximately HK$65.4
million (2009: HK$92.4 million). The Renminbi denominated
balances of HK$37.8 million were placed with licensed banks in
the PRC and the conversion of these balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulation of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$551.8 million (2009: HK$349.1 million), while
its current liabilities were approximately HK$306.5 million (2009:
HK$213.6 million). The current ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) of the Group was approximately 1.8 (2009: 1.6); and
its gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ funds) was
approximately 0.03 (2009: 0.06).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBFmETH

On 27 August 2009, the Company, Team Effort Investments
Limited (“Team Effort”) and DBS Asia Capital Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which Team
Effort has agreed to place, and the Placing Agent has agreed to
procure not less than six placees, on a best effort basis, for the
purchase of up to 100,000,000 shares of the Company at the
placing price of HK$0.70 per placing shares (the “Placing”). On
the same date, the Company and Team Effort entered into a
“top-up” subscription agreement pursuant to which Team Effort
has agreed to subscribe for such number of subscription shares
which is equivalent to the number of shares actually placed under
the Placing, being a maximum number of 100,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.70 per
subscription share (the “Subscription”). Details of these
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
27 August 2009. The Placing and the Subscription was
completed on 1 September 2009 and 9 September 2009
respectively. Approximately HK$68 million was raised for the
general working capital of the Company.

On 14 September 2010, the Company, Team Effort and the
Placing Agent entered into another placing agreement pursuant
to which Team Effort has agreed to place, and the Placing Agent
has agreed to procure not less than six placees, on a best effort
basis, for the purchase of up to 200,000,000 shares of the
Company at the placing price of HK$0.75 per placing shares
(the “2010 Placing”). On the same date, the Company and Team
Effort entered into a “top-up” subscription agreement pursuant
to which Team Effort has agreed to subscribe for such number
of subscription shares which is equivalent to the number of shares
actually placed under the Placing, being a maximum number of
200,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HKS$0.75 per subscription share (the “2010 Subscription”). Details
of these transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 September 2010. The 2010 Placing was completed
on 16 September 2010 and the 2010 Subscription was
completed on 24 September 2010 respectively. Approximately
HK$148 million was raised from the placing for the digital cable
television two-way conversion business and the general working
capital of the Group.
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On 4 December 2009, the Company issued HK$264,725,020
zero coupon convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) pursuant
to the terms of the sale and purchase agreements dated 19 June
2008 respectively as part of the consideration for the acquisitions
of its subsidiaries. The Convertible Notes are convertible at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.34 per share, and upon full
conversion a total of 778,603,000 conversion shares will be
issued by the Company. The Convertible Notes have not been
converted into shares as at 30 June 2010.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the majority of the Group’s
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. Up to 30 June 2010, the management of the
Company is of the opinion that the Group has insignificant
exposure to foreign exchange risk. As a result, the Group did
not use any financial instruments for hedging against fluctuation
in foreign exchange for the year ended 30 June 2010.
Nevertheless, the management of the Company will closely
monitor and from time to time reassess the exchange risk
exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative hedging
arrangements if considered necessary.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2010, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company was named as a co-defendant in a writ of
summons on 20 December 2007. The plaintiff alleged that the
Company:

(i)  failed to honour a joint and several guarantee in respect of
the liability of the Defendants under a forbearance
agreement to the extent of HK$25,000,000; and

(i)  failed to honour two cheques dated 30 June 2007 and
31 October 2007 in the sum of HK$2,500,000 each, totaling
HK$5,000,000 plus interests and costs given by a former
Director in his personal capacity out of a bank account
which had been by then formally closed by the Company.

Based on the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors
are of the view that the Company has a valid defence to the
claims and, accordingly, have not made provision for any claim
arising from the litigation, other than the related legal and other
costs. The Company filed its defence on 28 March 2008 and
witness statement on 30 July 2009. The witness statements had
been exchanged. The trial hearing has been scheduled on
24 November 2010 to 9 December 2010.

Apart from the action against the Company disclosed above,
there were no other material outstanding writ and litigation against
the Group and/or the Company. As at 30 June 2010, the Group
had no other significant contingent liabilities.

ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the announcements of the Company in
relation to the digital cable television two-way conversion
business dated 23 April 2010 and 3 May 2010 respectively, the
Group had no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
or significant investment during the year ended 30 June 2010.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W R
DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company recommends the payment of a final
bonus share dividend for the year ended 30 June 2010 on the
basis of one bonus share at par for every thirty (30) existing shares
of the Company held to shareholders (2009: Nil). The bonus share
issue is subject to the passing of the appropriate resolution at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 30 June
2010.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in
ensuring high standards of corporate governance in the interests
of its shareholders and is committed to identifying and formalizing
best practices appropriate to the needs of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board, sound internal controls, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. Throughout the financial year
ended 30 June 2010, the Group has applied the principles set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“HKSE
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) except
the code provision A2.1:

Distinctive Roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Xiao Yan as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
supported by the senior management, is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, executing the Board decisions
and coordinating the daily operations of the Group. Up to the
date of this report, the Board has not appointed an individual to
the post of Chairman. In view of the current operations of the
Group, the management considered that there is no imminent
need to change the arrangement. Further announcement will be
made by the Company with regard to the appointment of a new
Chairman of the Company in due course.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors
throughout the year ended 30 June 2010. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by Directors during the year ended 30
June 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company and is entitled to delegate its powers to any executive
Director, committees of the Board and the management team.
The Board is primarily responsible for approving and monitoring
the Company’s major corporate matters, the evaluation of the
performance of the Company and oversight of the management.
The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, consisting of three executive Directors, a non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 31 to
35 of the Annual Report. To the knowledge of the Directors, the
Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The Company has
received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to the rules
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and therefore considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

WHE-Z—ZEXA=TALFERN  AQFD
FREI 2R E TR RIE5. 48162 ES67IEFRELZ
RGN FTELEERAEZETESFR ST - A2
AEMERERELARENE  BREHEC
?iﬁH:+E¢¢Fm'iﬂEﬂt&ﬁ%§$
ETELFRGIRGNTEELZEE o

EXg

EXZ2RARARRIZEREEY 2RRE TEMRN

TES EFZENEEERRETREN &
%@Ixﬁﬁﬁt/ﬁ&%g$A AEANDEEE -
HEARRIZRAREREREE - EFSERYER
RABERABREEM -

RARERY  EEGFLEKE  BR=2H1T
B —BNTESR=RBIIFRTES -

BREFHRABEAARREBBRZAMEER
AR - EEZBEFBHENFHREIIE35
H BREEMA EFEXE R ZELEERMT
B %% BBREMERHEBRR - AQFE
%E%%I#ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%%5w
FREBYUERN  FEERERL  AMRBAE
BEUIFNTESTARBYL °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

s et S/ k|
TtEERRE

The Board met regularly during the year with additional meetings
arranged if and when required. The Board met twelve times during
the year ended 30 June 2010 and the attendance record of each
member of the Board is set out in the table on page 29 of the
annual report. Directors are appropriately notified in advance of
the meetings with proposed agenda and are free to contribute
alternative views at meetings. Major decisions are only adopted
after deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are
considered having conflicts of interest or who have material
interest in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meetings and will abstain
from voting on relevant resolutions.

Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
All Directors have access to the company secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with, and in consultation with the compliance officer, advising
the Board on compliance matters.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in accordance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The audit committee comprises three members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Wo Ping
JP (Chairman), Mr. Dong Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.

The principal duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Company, and to review the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis as well as to ensure
independence of the continuing auditor.

The audit committee met four times during the year ended
30 June 2010 and the attendance of each member of the
committee is set out in the table on page 29 of the annual report.
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During the year ended 30 June 2010, the audit committee
discharged its duties by reviewing the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports, and financial statements as
well as audit related matters of the Company. The audit committee
discussed the above as appropriate with the executive Directors,
the management and the auditors of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board. The audited financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010 have been reviewed by the
audit committee and approved for issue by the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a remuneration committee since 12
April 2005. The existing committee is made up of the Company’s
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung
Wo Ping JP (Chairman), Mr. Dong Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include the formulation of the Company’s remuneration policy,
the approval or recommendation of remuneration packages for
the Directors and the senior management, and the review and
approval of performance based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. According to the terms of
reference, the remuneration committee should meet at least twice
a year.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the remuneration committee
held two meetings and the attendance record of each member
of the committee is set out in the table on page 29 of the annual
report. At the meetings, members of the remuneration committee
reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the
Directors by taking into account factors such as the business
objectives of the Group and the respective contribution of each
of the Directors to the Group.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a nomination committee since 12 April
2005. The existing committee is made up of the Company’s three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Wo Ping
JP (Chairman), Mr. Dong Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.
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The principal responsibilities of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board; to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship; and to make recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.
According to the terms of reference, the nomination committee
should meet at least twice a year. During the year ended 30 June
2010, the nomination committee held two meetings and the
attendance record of each member of the committee is set out
in the table on page 29 of the annual report.

The Board has the power to appoint Director(s) pursuant to the
Bye-laws of the Company. During the year ended 30 June 2010,
the Board appointed a non-executive Director and an
independent non-executive Director.

List of Directors and the attendance
records of the Directors and members of
the committees for the year ended

30 June 2010
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the Company is required to pay an
aggregate of approximately HK$701,000 to the external auditor
for its audit services.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditors
for preparing financial statements of the Company are set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 48 to 49 of the
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Company’s assets. The management of the Group is
delegated with the responsibility from time to time to implement
and maintain the Board’s policies on risk management and
control. At least annually, the significant internal control system
is reviewed with the audit committee.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Company Ordinances, and reported the Company’s
performance through various communication channels. These
include annual and extraordinary general meetings, quarterly,
interim and annual reports, various notices, announcements and
circulars.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Yan (“Mr. Xiao”), aged 49, is the Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ) of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Xiao is a
senior economist in the PRC and has over 23 years of experience
in corporate planning, business development, corporate finance,
investment, consulting and banking. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Xiao was the deputy general manager of the capital
operational department (investment department) of China Potevio
Company Limited where he was responsible for overall business
planning, management and investments. From 1997 to 2006,
Mr. Xiao was the deputy general manager of China Everbright
Bank and the Vice President of its Wuhan branch where he
oversaw the overall operations. Mr. Xiao had previously held senior
positions in international companies, and consulting and
accounting firms. Mr. Xiao holds a master degree of business
administration and is a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Xiao was appointed as an
executive Director and the CEO in August 2008 and March 2009
respectively.

Mr. Feng Yongming (“Mr. Feng”), aged 44, joined the Group
in January 2009 and has been appointed as an executive Director
in March 2009. Mr. Feng is currently the compliance officer of
the Company and the chairman of Shenzhen Champion Maxiumic
Technologies Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. He was also the director of Huzhou Maxium IC
Design Co., Limited from 2005 to 2007. From 1998 to 2005, Mr.
Feng held senior positions in investment and securities firms in
China. He has extensive experience in the management of the
Group’s businesses, financial management and investment. Mr.
Feng holds a bachelor of arts in Economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China and
master of administration degree from the School of Business,
Carleton University in Canada.

Mr. Li Tao (“Mr. Li”), aged 41, joined the Group as an executive
Director in April 2008. Mr. Li had been the vice president of
Yunnan Baiyao Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over 16
years of experience in the administration and management of
different companies and businesses.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Lei (“Mr. Xu”), aged 39, joined the Group as a non-
executive Director in November 2009. Mr. Xu has had over 13
years of senior executive and operational experiences in the fields
of mass media, technological development and cultural promotion
in China since completion of a graduate study at Tongji University
in China. Mr. Xu had been a senior manager of The China
International Cultural Exchange Centre from 1997 to 2001; the
president and editor-in-chief of Travel & Leisure Magazine from
2002 to the present. Since 2003, Mr. Xu has gained substantial
corporate governance and operational control experiences in the
field of broadcasting and media communications in China including
as the vice president of a audio and video publishing house,
executive directors of a communication technology development
company and a cultural investment firm respectively. Through his
association with these enterprises, Mr. Xu has built a broad based
social and people resource network in the relevant industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (“Mr. Leung”), aged 66, has been an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee since August 2009. Mr. Leung is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England of Wales. He is a
tax professional, having engaged in UK tax, Hong Kong tax and
international tax planning for almost 30 years. Currently, he is a
senior advisor of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, one of the
major accounting firms in Hong Kong. Apart from his professional
work, Mr. Leung has actively participated in community affairs
since 1983. He had been a Regional Councillor for 5 years and a
District Councillor for 18 years. He is also a Councillor of the
New Territories Heung Yee Kuk. He currently serves on various
Boards and Committees including the Hospital Authority’s
Hospital Governing Committee of Tai Po Hospital, United Christian
Nethersole Community Health Service Management Committee
and the Human Organ Transplant Board. He was a District Advisor
to the Hong Kong Branch of Xinhua News Agency before 1997.
Mr. Leung was awarded a Badge of Honour by Her Majesty Queen
Elizabeth in 1994 for service to the community. He was also
appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2000.
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Mr. Dong Shi (“Mr. Dong”), aged 47, has been an independent
non-executive Director since October 2008. Mr. Dong graduated
from Southwest University of Political Science and Law, China
with a doctorate degree in law. From 1998 to present, Mr. Dong
is a veteran lawyer in Shenzhen Rongguan Law Office. Currently,
Mr. Dong is also a full time professor of international law in
Southwest University of Political Science and Law, a researcher
of the WTO Research Centre of Liaoning Academy of Social
Science, an arbitrator of Shenzhen Arbitration Committee, and a
part time professor of Chongqging Technology and Business
University.

Mr. Hu Dingdong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 44, has been an independent
non-executive Director since April 2009. Mr. Hu has over 20 years
of extensive experience in the investment industry and has had
senior management positions with various investment and
securities firms in China. Mr. Hu has completed a graduate
program in finance from South Western University of Finance
and Economics in China. He also has published numerous finance
related articles in newspapers, magazines and journals.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Fred Fong (“Mr. Wu”), aged 62, has been appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1
March 2009. Mr. Wu, joined the Group as an advisor in May
2008. He has had considerable experience in auditing, corporate
planning, corporate finance, investment, consulting and
administration with public companies in Canada and Hong Kong
including executive directorship experience with a public
company in Hong Kong for over seven years. Mr. Wu holds a
master of business administration degree from the Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada. He is a Chartered
Accountant qualified in Canada and a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wu is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Public
Procurement Limited and Minth Group Limited, both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Tang Bin (“Dr. Tang”), aged 41, is the Chief Technology
Officer of the Company. Dr. Tang possesses a profound
knowledge, considerable experience of product development in
specialized field of technology, and an extensive background in
business management and operation. Dr. Tang is currently
responsible for the product development plan and technology
management of the Group, and is the chairman of Beijing Jingiao
Technology Limited (“Beijing Jingiao”), an indirect subsidiary of
the Company. Dr. Tang currently fills posts in many social activities
in mainland China, such as an evaluation expert of innovation
fund for small technology based firms of Ministry of Science and
Technology, a standard examination expert of the National
Information Standard Committee, a senior member of the
bluetooth technical professional committee of National 3C Union.
Dr. Tang holds a master degree in engineering from Graduate
Institute of Chinese Academy of Science and a doctor degree in
engineering from University of Science and Technology of China.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum Clara (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 38, joined the
Group in July 2008. She has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in November 2008 and is also the
Financial Controller of the Company. Ms. Cheng is a certified
public accountant registered with the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Cheng has
over 16 years of experiences in corporate finance, financial
management, legal compliance and auditing. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng was an executive director and the chief
financial officer of Rojam Entertainment Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. She has also worked at
First Shanghai Capital Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms.
Cheng holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a
master of science degree in finance.

Mr. Tian Songlin (“Mr. Tian”), aged 41, has been the General
Manager of Beijing Jingiao since December 2008 and is
responsible for the overall management of Beijing Jingiao. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Tian was the vice general manager of
Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co. Ltd in where he was responsible
for managing the overall sales division. Mr. Tian was educated in
Japan and obtained a doctorate degree of economics. He has
also worked at a real estate company in Japan for four years.
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Mr. Yang Liu (“Mr. Yang”) aged 38, is the General Manager of
Huzhou Maxium IC Design Co., Limited. Mr. Yang has a number
of successful tape-out experience in design and research
directions for the CPU core and system design. He has had
extensive experience in management and design of domestic
and foreign well-known design companies. Mr. Yang has designed
various 8-digit CPU systems, and developed a high-speed, four
clock cycles and a single clock cycle 80C51 core. He has also
designed the high-performance 32-bit CPU and completed all
design, process of 0.18UM upper plate which is at 250MHz and
above. Mr. Yang has organized and led a number of national key
science and technology projects and is also a part-time professor
of a first-class university in mainland China. Mr. Yang holds a
bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree in business
administration.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in wireless digital terrestrial television
network equipment integrated business, digital cable television
two-way conversion business, research, design, development
on and manufacturing of electronic message security products,
integrated circuits, and the integrated circuit solutions and the
related services. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 17 to the financial statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 50.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final bonus share
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2010 on the basis of one
bonus share at par for every thirty (30) existing shares of the
Company held to shareholders. The bonus share issue is subject
to the passing of the appropriate resolution at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statement.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 54 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2010, the Company did not have any reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, as
computed in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (2009: Nil). In addition, the Company’s
share premium balance of HK$491,372,000 as at 30 June 2010
(2009: HK$396,560,000) may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 30 June 2010 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Feng Yongming
Mr. Li Tao

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Xu Lei (appointed on 24 November 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (appointed on 11 August 2009)
Mr. Dong Shi
Mr. Hu Dingdong

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (resigned on 11 August 2009)

In accordance with Bye-Law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Xu Lei, shall retire from office and, being eligible to sit for re-
election, intend to offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1), at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2), any Director appointed pursuant
to Bye-law 86(2) shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation. Mr. Xiao Yan and Mr. Dong Shi are subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Bye-law 87(1).

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 31 to 35.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than three-month
prior notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance (as defined in Rule 18.25 of the GEM
Listing Rules) to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a
party and in which a director and substantial shareholder of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 30 June 2010.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The employee share option scheme of the Company was adopted

pursuant to a written resolution of all the then shareholders of
the Company passed on 13 March 2003 (the “Share Option

Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a

period of 10 years after the date on which the Share Option

Scheme is adopted.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

Participants

The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any person who
is a full time or part time employee or director of any member
of the Group, a consultant or agent of or adviser to any
member of the Group (the “Eligible Participants”), to take
up options to subscribe for the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”).

Maximum number of Shares available
under the Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue on the listing date, 16 April 2003, (“Initial Scheme
Limit”). The Company may refresh the Initial Scheme Limit
with shareholders’ approval provided that each such refresh
may not exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in issue
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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(d) Maximum number of options to any

(e)

(f)

one individual

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
each Eligible Participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
aggregate consideration of HK$1 for each grantee is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the Board to each grantee,
at the time of making an offer of the grant of an option
which shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option. Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is neither any performance target that needs
to be achieved before the option can be exercised nor any
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day (and for this purpose
shall be taken to be the date of the Board meeting at which
the Board proposes to grant the options); (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) The
nominal value of a Share.
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Following the shareholders’ resolution passed on 27 October R -ZTAF+A -+t BRBRIREEE © &
2009, the scheme limit was refreshed to 153,308,300, BIRFEE $1 £ 153,308,30015 - HEN A BRBAE
representing 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of passing HEETRMN210% - BHE_ZT—FTFA=+H
the resolution. During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Company HFE  AReMERTESTRESEMBIE -
did not grant any share option to the Directors and employees. IRIEIE AR T 8 (MEr EIR BN BB ) AR 2
The number of share options that could be granted under the A&tk B £153,308,30010  (h AR AR T —=F
Share Option Scheme (if the scheme limit is not refreshed) was NAZTHREBITRMHE.8% °

153,308,300, representing approximately 9.8% of the Shares of

the Company in issue as at 30 June 2010.

Details of the employee share options are as follows: EEBERELFBEAT

Number of Shares (Note 1)

ROEE (1)
Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed
Asof duringthe duringthe duringthe  during the Asof  Date of Subscription
Paticipants 1 July 2009 year year year year 30 June 2010  Grant Exercise period Price
SE B2
ZEENE “g-%%
28% tA-B REARE RERTE REREHE RERER AAZ+A  RUAH  7H8 ARE
(Note 2)
(Fif3%2)
Directors and EER
Chief executives TETRAR
Mr. Xiao Yan BERHE 2,200,000 - - - — 2,200,000 18/02/2009  18/03/2009-17/03/2012 0.37
Mr. Feng Yongming BABEE 1,000,000 - - - — 1,000,000 18/02/2009  18/03/2009-17/03/2012 0.37
Mr. Wu Fred Fong BREE 4,000,000 - - - — 4,000,000 18/02/2009  18/03/2009-17/03/2012 0.37
Subtotal it 7,200,000 - - - - 7,200,000
Other participants Atiga% 28,720,000 - (23,220,000) - (2,000,0000 3,500,000  18/02/2009  18/03/2009-17/03/2012 0.37
Total Foh 35,920,000 - (23,220,000) - (2,000,000) 10,700,000
Notes: Mzt -
1. Number of shares in the Company over which options granted 1. REBRESIEREMA FIIEZBREMS R
under the Share Option Scheme are exercisable. KAFRNDEE -

2. The closing price of the Share immediately before the date on 2. BRONREEERENR_ZTANF-_A+/N\BELAH
which the share options granted on 18 February 2009 was BART 2 T B R0.34% 7T -
HK$0.34.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to ERETE 2B E AN I IS MERMIFE30 o
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to securities transactions by Directors, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of interests
underlying in the issued
Name Position Capacity Shares Shares share capital
%A ERITRES
Z8 B % =30 47) HERD EEHEIHL
(Note)
(&)
Mr. Xiao Yan Chief Executive Officer/ Beneficial owner — 2,200,000 0.14%
HERE Executive Director ExnBEBAA
THREHR, NTES
Mr. Feng Yongming Executive Director Beneficial owner — 1,000,000 0.06%
KR E A HITES ExEBA
Mr. Wu Fred Fong Chief Financial Officer Beneficial owner 1,000,000 4,000,000 0.32%
AR K4 BB, EnBEAA
Note: FfEE -

The Directors and the chief executive of the Company were granted
share options at the exercise price of HK$0.37 per Share on 18 February
2009. The share options would be exercisable during the period from
18 March 2009 to 17 March 2012. These individuals were deemed to be
interested in shares of HK$0.01 each which would fall to be issued upon
exercise of their respective share options of the Company under the
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 30
June 2010 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO recorded that, as at 30 June 2010, the following
persons (not being a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was expected, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company or any other members of the Group or
held any option in respect of such capital and recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company

FTERRERARQT ZBM R
RO ZEERER

AR BMREE S MBI 3361KF & 2 Bt
B R_ZE-TFXA=TH  ATALT QAR
AIZEER  TBTBRABRTZ2RR) NED - 188
e ERE T HEERIEE S LB RDIEXVELSE
2REIDEZMERARAARRBKE 2 EEHER
KB REFERKERZEEMERMNETAERT
BRI AR R RAEBEERNEMKE AT ZBERK
G EREZEMBERRAEEI0%IA L2 s
KBS MR ERAR 2 EABERE - RRARAIR
EES AR EPIFIB6IFAT FEBCMATLERZ
BEmER

RALXTROKRBBERD 2RR

Number or
attributable
number of
shares or Approximate
underlying Type of percentage
Name of shareholder shares held interests of interests
BREZRHAN
HE R4 8 B BEREL
BRREE FELEA ERER Bk
Choi Chung Lam (Note 1) 674,044,706 (L) Interest in controlled 43.10%
BB (BT aET) ~_ corporation
R EEER
Team Effort Investments Limited 672,044,706 (L) Interest in controlled 42.97%
(Note 1) (P 7E1) __corporation
EREERR
Mind Smart Group Limited 469,706,000 (L) Beneficial owner 30.03%
(Note 1) (Fft5E1) ERBEEA
Li Haoping (Note 2) 348,151,353 (L) Interest in controlled 22.26%
T (MEE2) ~_corporation
REEERS
Lomond Group Limited 348,151,353 (L) Interest in controlled 22.26%
(Note 2) (Ff#E2) ~_corporation
XEEEER
Easy Mount Enterprises Limited 308,897,000 (L) Beneficial owner 19.75%

(Note 2) (Fff5E2)

L: Long Position
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Notes: B

Mind Smart Group Limited (“Mind Smart”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability.
The entire issued share capital of Mind Smart is owned as to 85%
by Team Effort Investments Limited (“Team Effort”) and 15% by
Mr. Lu Xing. Team Effort is wholly owned by Mr. Choi (“Mr. Choi”).
Team Effort and Mr. Choi are deemed to be interested in the
469,706,000 shares to be issued upon the exercising of the
conversion rights attaching to convertible notes. The convertible
notes are part of the consideration issued to Mind Smart upon
satisfaction of certain conditions pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to shares of Sino Will Limited entered by the
Company, among others, and Mind Smart on 19 June 2008. The
convertible note is transferable provided that each of the transfer
shall not be less than HK$5,000,000.00 or its multiples. The
469,706,000 shares represent the remaining shares to be allotted
and issued upon full conversion of the aforesaid convertible notes.
Mr. Choi personally owns 2,000,000 shares and is also deemed
to be interested in the 202,338,706 shares held by Team Effort.

Easy Mount Enterprises Limited (“Easy Mount”) is a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The entire issued share
capital of Easy Mount is owned as to 85% by Lomond Group
Limited (“Lomond Group”) and 15% by Mr. Ho Wai Jung. Lomond
Group is wholly owned by Mr. Li Haoping (“Mr. Li”). Lomond Group
and Mr. Li are deemed to be interested in the 308,897,000 shares
to be issue upon the exercising of the conversion rights attaching
to convertible notes. The convertible notes are part of the

—_

Mind Smart Group Limited ([Mind Smart]) & 7 5%
BHERRES ((RBERRES]) MK IZER
AA] e Mind Smartz 2 &2 # 1T A+ A Team
Effort Investments Limited ([ Team Effort] ) 5 85%
K ABEIT R E BB 15%  Team Efforte £2 %t A4 (52
S 2BHEAR - Team Effort REL A D BIRR A
RARRERAM 2 RREEITEMATETZ
469,706,000/ Bx 5 R FE B % o RIBARE (KA
B1E) EBMind Smarti Z =% )\ 75 A+ LB 5iSino
Will Limitedf& 7 5132 2 B B ek - AIRREBIER
REZ — DR E T B R 2% MMind Smart
T oARREBEEREZREITIER
5,000,000.008 TSk HEEH 2 BR T Al F#E:E -
469,706,0008% A& 15 T9 A L il AT #A 3% SRIR R BEE 1R
TR TFRERBITZHTRG - BREEBEAESR
2,000,000/& B fn - TR 4R A5 Team Effortds B 2
202,338,706/ ik A P #E fE 2 o

Easy Mount Enterprises Limited ([Easy Mount]) %
REBHEBRARESFMALZER DA ° Easy
Mountz 2 &2 247X 2~ B Lomond Group Limited
(ILomond Groupl) #E B 85% & B {AI{EME L £ A
15% ° Lomond GroupFZ/EF 4 ([Fh4E]) 28
%7 - Lomond Group & 25t 4 5 B4R AR Al A
SR FTRT 2 MR R ME 1T (55 1T 7B T 817 2. 308,897,000
R PR - RIBFARQ R (KR EIE) HEasy

consideration issued to Easy Mount upon satisfaction of certain Mount® ZZEZE N\F XA+ N A Star Hub
conditions pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement in relation Investments Limited D512 2 B Btk + AJIRARE

to shares of Star Hub Investments Limited entered by the
Company, among others, and Easy Mount on 19 June 2008. The
convertible note is transferable provided that each of the transfer
shall not be less than HK$5,000,000.00 or its multiples. The
308,897,000 shares represent the remaining shares to be allotted
and issued upon full conversion of the aforesaid convertible notes.
Mr. Li is also deemed to be interested in the 39,254,353 shares
held by Lomond Group.

BIEAREZ —BMERE TIRMER T & MEasy
MountZ4T c TR EREBE A ERSBTER
5,000,000.008 TSk KB 2 1B T Al FEE -
308,897, 000R% A& 7 J9 58 1 i A] # % S2 45 JE 7 B i #a
BASTRERETZHTRMD - TEETERAR
Lomond Group#$ & 239,254,353 % & {7 7 % &

o

BX



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHE

Save as disclosed above, the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company were not aware that there was any person (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was expected,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any other
members of the Group or held any option in respect of such
capital and recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

BEXAREEI  ARREZTHETEZTHRAER
PHEAEAAL (LHRRAREFHLEZRTHA
B)RARBZ I - HHEARD SERE T HES
BREBEREBEES LB RAIEXVERE2RFEIDE
ZHREARAARNRRBEZ EERERE - HBHRSE
BEERAEZEEMERNETAHBERTHTEARR
AR AKEETMEMKERRZBRAG LERRE

E AR AEE10%IA E 2w - RFET R
AEFRARNZEFBERE - MEARAIREES KM
= R PIFEI36IGATHFEECMATRCER 2 L IE

o

iy

\

m

TEREFPRMER

Percentage of the Group’s

HEEEF DL
Turnover Purchases
BER KB
The largest customer BAERF 43%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPAF 77%
The largest supplier BRAMER 45%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEET 87%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company
Bye-Laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MEBEERREZEMBEARRESAAREALR
RAIDEITRAE%IA L2 EMBRD BN AKE R
REFPRMHERTHEEEMNES#ERS o

BrEBEERE

BREZARMATEERELIBERE G A
EARRARLHIABRBRRIZSHENR -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year ended 30 June 2010, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management or shareholders of the
Company or their associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of
interests with the Group.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 140.

On behalf of the Board

Xiao Yan
Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 September 2010
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

%8 37 1% SR =R &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
BN EERERA A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Heng
Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to
139, which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

B fg s B R R A
(RERERBAT> ERAF)
SRR

Az EZECHEZRERAG ([E2F))
LEWBAR (HEA[ESE]) E502 1398 247
BFBHRE  BER_Z-ZEFXA=THZESE
AR ERR BEARZHBRRE  REBEZH
IHFEZHEAEZERAR GaRBEZEHRNES
RanER  WREZEHTBRME REMBEENE
B &E

EENGAMBRRAKEZE
(=

EAREFARARBEERHDAREH2ES
B AR RE S A AH 2 REATRERE
EMATFHIRHEFAMBER - RREOER
i ERRAERERRERTATRIIREGA Y
BREEWZ B - AERAHERETE
A IR B AT B2 B KRR ¢ B IR
RE 2 & H B - RIBFRIEN &2 2 @it th
it -

Bz EE

RZBE 2 EERRBEARBM 2 BEREZERE
MBHHRELER XREERE-NAN-FQF
ERENTHRRE  ERE2RERFELERSE  mAH
FREE MRS - AT AR E 2 AREE
MEMATBERREET - ARBEMEREERE
SIS EMZBBRIBENETER - REE
AIZSRAZHBENE TERERE - WRERRNITE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

%8 37 1% SR =R &

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2010 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Morison Heng
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong: 27 September 2010
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R EEBRAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

E B -FEAASTALER

2010 2009
—E-=fF ZZTTNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
F 5 FEx T T
Turnover ERER 5 653,260 339,365
Cost of sales $HE AR (390,222) (176,017)
Gross profit ER 263,038 163,348
Other income E b U A 7 1,050 11,602
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHEHERY (4,007) (2,261)
Other operating expenses Hipag & & A (44,657) (44,856)
Profit from operations KR T 215,424 127,833
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz W 33 - 541
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR EERE ZRESRE
investments - (2,174)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale PEAHLERE
investments el ot = (791)
Finance costs & B AN 8 (11,049) (1,974)
Profit before taxation BR Bt A % A 9 204,375 123,435
Taxation 1A 10 (8,730) (5,429)
Profit for the year FREF 195,645 118,006
Other comprehensive income Hih2HEBKA
Exchange differences on translating BMEGINEE 2
foreign operations E =% 4,424 (286)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZEHBRALE
for the year 200,069 117,720
Profit attributable to: AL &R
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 181,042 110,698
Non-controlling interest IR AR R M 14,603 7,308
195,645 118,006
Total comprehensive income EEEZEWALLE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAFIRERFEA 185,221 110,424
Non-controlling interest JEVE RS A% SRR 14,848 7,296
200,069 117,720
EARNINGS PER SHARE EQTREFEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY EhaERAEF
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic = 11.96 cents &1l  11.28 cents /&1l
Diluted s 10.63 cents &l  11.27 cents Il




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BRI R

AT 30 JUNE 2010 RZZE—ZFA=1+H

1878 i B 2 B A PR B

2010 2009
—E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FH T T T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BREREE 14 7,187 1,926
Goodwill [k 15 753,146 284,846
Intangible assets mILEE 16 34,107 18,415
Trade receivables JFE UK BR 3R 19 227,804 48,845
1,022,244 354,032
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 2,889 4,004
Trade receivables JE U5 BR 3R 19 452,126 228,777
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE  Zek
other receivables H & WK IE 20 29,348 21,923
Amount due from a related company FE U — I REE A B ZRIB 21 1,993 1,974
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRES 22 65,401 92,410
551,757 349,088
Current liabilities rEEE
Trade payables FETER 23 223,689 168,746
Other payables and accruals HEMENREREFER 24 38,173 9,232
Obligations under finance leases RERNEE 25 345 78
Loan from a shareholder KE—BBRRZER 26 30,000 30,000
Tax payables FESFIIE 14,329 5,549
306,536 213,605
Net current assets RBEEFE 245,221 135,483




HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BRI R

AT 30 JUNE 2010 RZZE—ZFA=1+H

2010 2009
—E-=EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M aE FET T T
Total assets less current liabilities #REEBRBAE 1,267,465 489,515
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance leases RERNOEE 25 886 349
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBBEE 27 2,267 2,713
Convertible notes payable FEAT AT IR AR 2R 4B 28 176,694 —
179,847 3,062
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,087,618 486,453
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRREE
Share capital % 2 29 15,639 13,857
Reserves R 1,042,404 463,167
1,058,043 477,024
Non-controlling interests IR I I B R 2R 29,575 9,429
1,087,618 486,453
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZE—EFNAZTEALESSHEREET
27 September 2010. e
Xiao Yan Feng Yongming
HE y: %
Director Director

EF EE



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BA 5 Ik I 3=

AT 30 JUNE 2010

18 R B 42 B A IR 4 &

2010 2009
—2-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T T
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 17 1,000 1,000
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFE ZeRk
other receivables E 4th e 3R IB 20 580 1,760
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y Bt /B8 2 RIRIR 17 914,819 338,561
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREES 22 6,660 28,344
922,059 368,665
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENREREFER 24 1,639 1,093
Loan from a shareholder RE—BREZERK 26 30,000 30,000
31,639 31,093
Net current assets RBEEEE 890,420 337,572
Total assets less current liabilities fMAEEBRBAES 891,420 338,572
Non-current liability ERBEE
Convertible notes payable FEAT AT IR AR R B 28 176,694 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 714,726 338,572
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARREE
Share capital % 2 29 15,639 13,857
Reserves (= 31 699,087 324,715
714,726 338,572

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 September 2010.

Xiao Yan

HE

Director

EF

RIFE-—ZFFNA- T LAKESTSHERETET

%o

Feng Yongming
BKEA
Director

EF




HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GREZEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREAEE
(Accumulated
Exchange  Investment Share  Convertible losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital ~ fluctuation  valuation option notes retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings interests equity
‘ REME TEREE  (ZHES) FEBRBR .
REVEE  E4R%E  ENRE i fif /REEA s EnfE
HKS‘OOU HK$'000 HK$'000 ) HK$'OUO '000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n Thn Thn Tin Thn ] Thn Thn
At 1 July 2008 RZEEN\E+A-A 5,580 110,320 (595) 4 5,834 - - (54,856) 66,328 - 66,328
Tota comprehensive ~ ERZEWAEE
income for the year - - - (274) - - - 110,698 110,424 7,29 7,720
Transfer on disposal of ~ EAHEAELERE
avaiable-for-sale
investments - - - - (5,362) - - - (5,362) - (5,362)
Issue of convertble notes &7 ARS - - - - - - 156447 - 106447 - 16647
Issus of new shareson -~ {ATARZEE
conversion of BHRG
convertible notes 7,786 264,510 - - - - (156,447) - 115,849 - 115,849
Recognition of BAARGA
share-based payments ~ AREH3 - - - - - 14738 - - 14738 - 14738
Share options exercised B2 Bl 491 21,745 - - - (4.401) - - 17,835 - 17,835
Release upon cancel of  FHEEEE
vested share options - EERiE% B - - - - - (5,825) - 582 - - -
Share issue expenses  ETIRARR - (15) - - - - - - (15) - (15)
Non-controling nterests  REKENBRFZ
arsing from acquisiton ~ EARRRER
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 5 5
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMB AR - - ) (45) (472) - - - (521) - (521)
Resenes arisng fom ~ RER-E#2E
capitelinectiontoa~~~ (HERFEE
non-wholly owned A1
subsidiary - - 1,301 - - - - - 1,301 2,128 3429
At 30 June 2009 RoBEAFRATTE 8T 39650 0 ) - 4502 - e 4o 048 486453
Total comprehensie  ERZANAEE
income for the year - - - 4179 - - - 181,042 185,221 14,848 200,069
Issus of convertible notes Z1TTARE R - - - - - - 300,800 - 300,800 - 300,800
Issug of new shares — BTEIR( 1,000 69,000 - - - - - - 70,000 - 70,000
Shareissue expenses  B1IRHHE - 2041) - - - - - - 2,041) - .041)
Recognition of share-  BFEMRAAZRAR
based payments - - - - - 650 - - 650 - 650
Share options exercised 217 2 R E 782 27,853 - - - (3.270) - - 25,365 - 25,365
Release upon cancel of  FHCEE
vested share options ~ EETRER R - - - - - (196) - 196 - - -
Releass upon deregistraion F3% 2 —BHBA
of a subsidiary %20 - - 599 - - - - (599) - - -
Reserves arsing rom capital KE 524
injection to non-wholy ~ HBAFTE
owned subsidiaries A | - - 1,024 - - - - - 1024 5298 6,322
At 30 June 2010 RZE-5£/A=1A 15,639 491,372 2,325 3,905 - 1,696 300,800 242,306 1,058,043 29575 1,087,618




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

HE-T-TEAA=TALEE

Cash flows from operating activities

RETHRERERE

2010

—2-%F

HK$’000
FTET

18 R B 42 B A IR 4 &

2009
—EENF
HK$’000
T

Profit before taxation B 75 B4 A 204,375 123,435
Adjustments for: RATSEELFAE
Depreciation e 1,831 793
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HENHBERSE
investments 2 W = (7,138)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W - (541)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERERERE
investments — 2,174
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREERBEREIE 2,790 1,126
Impairment loss on other receivables H b pe W SRIB R E 18 - 560
Interest expenses FERAX 11,049 1,974
Interest income FEWA (363) (69)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE
investments 2B - 791
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment 2B - 822
Share-based payment expenses LARR 19 2 A5 5078 650 14,738
Walive of other payables o0 H A A /TAIE - (2,477)
Operating profit before working EEERBEAZ
capital changes BERF 220,332 136,188
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FE®D,(8m) 1,145 (770)
Increase in trade receivables FE U BR R38N (396,723) (275,838)
Increase in prepayments, FENEIE - Ze Rk
deposits and other receivables H b Uk SR IR 38 h0 (7,170) (15,109)
Increase in amount due from a related & U — fE B 3 X RIFRIEIE N
company - (272)
Increase in trade payables JE 1 BR ZIE 0 53,174 166,998
Increase in other payables and accruals £ {th JE < R IE & fE 51 & F3 18 1 28,660 1,092
Cash (used in)/generated from EE A EEZRS
operations (100,582) 12,289
Interest paid BEAFLE (1,855) (225)
Tax paid [EANEAE (538) (152)
Net cash (used in)/from operating ceEsEE () FRBRE
activities B (102,975) 11,912




HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

BE-T—SFAA=HAILFR

2010
—z-%5

HK$°000
TERT

2009
—EEZTHFE
HK$’000
TET

Cash flows from investing activities REZEFISHEEHE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEEFT B~ A

net of cash acquired HBRBRE - 125
Proceeds from disposal of HEITHNERE

available-for-sale investments FriS 5838 - 22,677
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & W B A 5 715 HIAE - 1,653
Interest received FLEWA 59 69
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B A A] {ft i £3% & - (10,000)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEBFEE (12,187) (1,120)
Purchases of property, BEWE R NMRE

plant and equipment (7,049) (1,433)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELEE

plant and equipment Fr{S 538 - 755
Decrease in pledged deposit BEEFZOR L - 4,394
Net cash (used in)/from investing REFES FrA) B8R

activities =2} (19,177) 17,120
Cash flow from financing activities ®BZEEBHFEHRERE
New bank loan raised HMESETER 2,390 —
New obligation raised under finance lease ¥Ti& gt & A &H 1T 1,100 445
Loan from a shareholder KEe—BREZER = 30,000
Repayment of bank loan EERITER (2,390) —
Repayment of obligations under EERMERNEMT

finance leases (296) (18)
Repayments of other loans EEEMER - (8,532)
Proceeds from issue of share capital IR AN 31T FR 1S R 95,365 17,835
Share issue expenses BITRDAX (2,041) (19)
Capital contribution by non-controlling ~ FE¥EAX AR AE 25 2

interests AE 321 —
Net cash from financing activities RETBRERESTE 94,449 39,715
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%?‘%t

cash equivalents W) I FEE (27,703) 68,747
Cash and cash equivalents at Fﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

beginning of year 92,410 23,688
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exggov g

changes 694 (25)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZRER

end of year ReZEY 65,401 92,410
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESEEYZERINT

cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITERERS 65,401 92,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church House, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and
its principal place of business is Unit 3, 43/F., Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are engaged in wireless
digital terrestrial television network equipment integrated
business, digital cable television two-way conversion
business, research, design, development on and
manufacturing of electronic message security products,
integrated circuits, and the integrated circuit solutions and

the related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group and the Company have

applied the following new and revised standards,

amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are or have become

effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1

(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 in relation
to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Eligible Hedged Items

Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate

ERER AT RGBT ER - BFT AR
(T R] RRERT BB MBS L) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continueq)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) - Int 15

Operating Segments

Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate

HK(FRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from

Customers

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation
of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the consolidated
financial statements) and changes in the format and content
of the consolidated financial statements.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing
Costs

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option previously
available to expense all the borrowing costs when incurred.
The adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in
the Group changing its accounting policy to capitalise all
such borrowing costs as part of the cost of the qualifying
asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting policy
to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which
the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1
July 2009 in accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007).

As the revised accounting policy has been applied
prospectively from 1 July 2009, this change in accounting
policy has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported
in respect of prior accounting periods. In the current year,
no borrowing costs were capitalised.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 requires the presentation of operating segments
in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are
regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker (see note 6 for details). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14
Segment Reporting which required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical). The
adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the
Group’s operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments (Amendments to HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The Group has not provided comparative information for
the expanded disclosures in accordance with the
transitional provision set out in the amendments.

The Group and the Company have not early applied the

following new and revised standards, amendments or

interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2009'

Improvements to HKFRSs
20102

Related Party Disclosures®

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights

Issues*
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HKFRS 9
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(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters®

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment
Transaction®

Financial Instruments’

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments?®
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1 January 2013,
with earlier application permitted. The Standard requires
all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of Group’s
financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & B R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (continueq)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 30 June each
year. Control is achieved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Non-controlling interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the share of changes in
equity by non-controlling interests since the date of the
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive
income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 July 2009, losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary's equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the non-controlling proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Contingent consideration is recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration is probable and could be
measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration are recognised against goodwill.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
other than from business combinations are recognised at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful lives, and carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (continueq)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment less their residual value, being the
net amount which the Company expects to obtain from
disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life after
deducting the expected cost of disposal, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Computer equipment 20 - 33% per annum

Furniture and fixtures 19 - 20% per annum
Office equipment 18 - 33% per annum
Leasehold improvements over the remaining

lease term
Motor vehicles 19 - 20% per annum

Plant and machinery 10 - 19% per annum

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for indications of impairment at each of the end
of the reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset,
or of the cash generating unit to which it belongs, is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested at least annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
accounts exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
accounts of the investe’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are classified as trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, amount due from a related
company and cash at bank in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & B R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is based on invoiced value of goods purchased
on weighted average basis and net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risks
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognised as an expense in
finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

BE-T—SFAA=HAILFR

3.

E5TH R @

ReRREEFEY

ReRRSEENOERTERERS « B
EREHRRENSRBLE R
HERARMZRELE  MEBERDHE

ZREBEN - RERERME - RELRE
SEMNERBREREE  UBKNARFR
SEIE A AIRITEX

TRBE
AEEZeRABREERMNER - EMERNK
AREER - BRRATRERR -
ERMBERNAREZ2ETYARTAZANK
Y%%ﬂoﬁﬁﬂgm@ﬁiﬁ SEREUWAR
PR BB EKRAFEX

HAE BERBRIBUESER - AT BER

TRAE -

WRE BB ERR—EFAKRTHER 2 FR
REzZ—HERMBEMRK  REAEBEZ
R ANRIER] - A B R EERT R B
HERRERERERHAE  MERBEZ
EZBEREERAKRTHER -

FEAY BR RN R H Ath B SR

FEA AR M B A R A SRR SR X FEHER
HERBHERAAR - ERTRAZELTE
K - R ATIE »



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time do
not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar nonconvertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the call option for conversion of
the bond into equity, is included in equity as convertible
notes reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component will remain in equity until conversion or
redemption of the note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible notes (continuea)

When the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve
and the carrying value of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note
is redeemed, the convertible notes reserve is released
directly to retained profits.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably
and on the following bases.

Service income is recognised in the period when services
are rendered.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEERtHR @
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition continued)

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with time when
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEFHEE®

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
exchange fluctuation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation in disposed of.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period. Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

—E-TEAASHALEE
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continueq)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group (Continued)

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are still not exercised at the expiry date or cancels, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants and advisors

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustment has been made to equity (share option reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party, directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or
(d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who

is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the executive directors who make strategic decisions.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty that
may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & B R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2010

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is
based on the credit history of its customers and other
debtors and the current market condition which requires
the use of judgements and estimates. When the expectation
on the recoverability of trade receivables is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
carrying value of trade receivables and impairment
provisions in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed. Management assesses the provision at each end
of the reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Valuation for convertible notes

The directors use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Company’s
convertible notes at initial recognition which are not quoted
in the active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. The fair value of
convertible notes at initial recognition is estimated by
independent professional valuers based on actual
transactions of the financial instruments in the market or
transactions of similar financial instruments which generally
represent the best estimate of the market value. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition varies with
different variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of convertible notes.
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HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

5.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of net invoiced value of
sales, after sales allowance for returns and trade discounts,
and income from provision of services.

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

EEREHECBRZFEHNBREREREST
MZEEFER) BREERBABSEAZS
gﬁ o

FRERZKEMT

2010 2009

—E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T T

Turnover B

Sales of goods EmiEE 594,538 263,951
Service income BRAS WA 58,722 75,414
653,260 339,365

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the
Executive Directors.

The Executive Directors consider the performance of the
Group from the perspective of the nature of products and
services. The chief operating decision-maker assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of segment profit/(loss) without allocation of
finance costs which is consistent with that in the accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HEER )
The segment information for the year ended and as at %Z?: 2 TFENA= +E|JJ:¢F&HA
30 June 2010 is as follows: =z
Wireless
digital  Digital cable
terrestrial television
television two-way Wireless
network conversion Encrypted digital audio
equipment equipment & integrated integrated
integration services circuits circuits Total
HWERR BRIUER
B CrkiE BEYN
PEBZBEER EERRE &S A ERRE 4t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TEL TEL TAET TAT
Revenue I 35
Segment turnover from REIREFZ
external customers DEEER 333,205 103,654 108,118 108,283 653,260
Segment results DEELE 95,686 32,620 88,120 26,068 242,494
Unallocated income AHEBA 1,050
Unallocated expenses AAERE (28,120)
Profit from operations EER7 215,424
Finance costs BEKA (11,049)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR 204,375
Taxation B (8,730)
Profit for the year FREF 195,645
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 629,383 205,002 185,145 534,548 1,554,078
Unallocated assets 515 YREE 19,923
Consolidated total assets GABEE 1,574,001
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities NEBEE 112,450 48,032 41,892 72,759 275,133
Unallocated liabilities KOEAR 211,250
Consolidated total liabilities ~ HA#EEE 486,383
Other information HirgH
Capital expenditure VN R 8,898 2,167 2,224 8,619 21,908
Unallocated capital APBEAAL
expenditure 3,329
Total capital expenditure BRERY 25,237
Depreciation nE 237 8 23 759 1,027
Unallocated depreciation AOEWE 804

Total depreciation ners 1,831



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HEEN @
The segment information for the year ended and as at HE_ZEZNFAAA=THLEFERRZ-EZE
30 June 2009 is as follows: NERA=ZTHZHEERAT :
Wireless
digtal
terrestrial
television Wireless
network Encrypted digital audio Sales of
equipment integrated integrated computer
integration circuits circuits parts Total
m@%@ \
BNESR BREM HEEK .
RBEFEERK nELH EpZlia [t @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FTET FAEL FAEL
Revenue E:
Segment turnover from REMREPZ
external customers NHEES 223,897 53,964 56,806 4,698 339,365
Segment results SEER 64,410 46,989 40,874 (389) 151,884
Unallocated income AAERA 11,602
Unallocated expenses AOERZ (35,653)
Profit from operations EERF 127,833
Gain on disposal of HEMB DRz W
subsidiaries 541
Impairment loss on A ERERE
available-for-sale investments 512 (2,174)
Loss on disposal of PERHEERE
available-for-sale investments 2 518 (791)
Finance costs BERK (1,974)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 128,435
Taxation I (5,429)
Profit for the year FEREH 118,006
Assets BE
Segment assets SHEE 445,024 66,699 162,360 - 674,083
Unallocated assets ADEEE 29,037
Consolidated total assets RAEBEE 703,120
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities NEBEE 156,985 24,164 10,725 - 191,874
Unallocated liabilities APEERE 24,793
Consolidated total liabilitles ~ 44 #ZEE 216,667
Other information HthER
Capital expenditure ARRX 4,117 631 109 - 4,857
Unallocated capital expenditure 7& 7 Bt & AR5 % 1,126
Total capital expenditure BRBEY 5,983
Depreciation 3 236 18 116 - 370
Unallocated depreciation AOEHE 423
Total depreciation neEss 793
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

6.

Geographical information

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are derived

from customers and operations based in the PRC and

accordingly, no geographical information of the Group is

disclosed.

Information about major customers

Revenues of approximately HK$282,249,000 and
HK$113,770,000 were derived from sales to two external

customers that amounted to more than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue (2009: HK$223,897,000 was derived from
sales to one external customer that amounted to more than

10% of the Group’s total revenue).

FEHERE @
h 33 & Kl

HIBIO% < AKBNm R EERATREZEP
KgE At EREAREEEZEFR -

ITBEFZEH

W25 49282,249,0007% 7T K& 113,770,000 7T 5K
BRMEIINREF 2IHE - BELAEELZK
BB 10% (ZE T N4 : 223,897,000 7T
TRE—BINREF  EAREEB K EER
10%)

OTHER INCOME 7. HilA
2010 2009
—g-2&  —TT;f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Bank interest income ERITHE WA 59 69

Gain on disposal of LEAHDERE

available-for-sale investments 2 W - 7,138
Other interest income H A F B U A 304 —
Sundry income B A 687 1,918
Waive of other payables e H b FE T 5RIB - 2,477
1,050 11,602

FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMA

2010
—2-8F

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
T T

HK$’000

Effective interest expenses on

AR R 2 BRFE

convertible notes (note 28) F 2 (B 5£28) 9,194 1,749
Interest element of finance leases BEME L 2 F B 5D 105 —
Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 58 —
Interest on loan from a shareholder RERE 2 FIE 1,575 43
Interest on other loans EMERZFE 117 182

11,049 1,974




HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZT-ZFX

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9.

A= tALER
P& it B it F1

The Group’s profit before taxation is arrived at after NEBBRE AR R T &0, GTA) T5&18

charging/(crediting): & 58R
2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHIT
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRT BN & 701 768
Cost of inventories sold GFEHEEKAR 380,958 169,162
Depreciation (note 14) e (14 1,831 793
Exchange loss & H B8 128 38
Gain on disposal of PERAIHEERE Y
available-for-sale investments L& - (7,138)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 W - (541)
Impairment loss RIEER
— available-for-sale investments — AHERE - 2,174
— intangible assets — EREE 2,790 1,126
— other receivables — H KT - 560
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - f%& S
plant and equipment B8 - 822
Loss on disposal of HEJHLEREZ
available-for-sale investments &8 - 791
Operating lease charges wEHEER
— equipments and motor vehicles — RERAE 878 321
— office premises — WAEME 4,460 3,643
— staff quarter —BIfERE 618 159
Research and development costs 9T & I ES A AN 2,911 1,252
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRKN(BIEES
remuneration - note 11) B —BiEE11)
— salaries and allowances — ¥ e MERL 12,024 9,704
— pension scheme contributions — RIS FTEIE R 370 263
— share-based payment expenses — RO B - 13,648




18 R B 42 B A IR 4 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
10. TAXATION 10. %18
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T T
Current tax: BUEARIA -
Hong Kong BE
— underprovision in prior year — REFERETR 310 —
Overseas ST
— charge for the year — FAZH 8,721 5,711
— underprovision in prior year — BAEFEREETR 169 —
Deferred tax: EIEFRIE
Overseas ST
— credit for the year (note 27) — FRER (F:E27) (470) (282)
8,730 5,429

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2010 is
calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions, mainly the PRC, is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions. The applicable enterprise income tax rate for
the PRC is 25%.

In accordance with the approval from the relevant tax
authorities, Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Company
Limited (“Beijing Jingiao”) and Beijing Zhongguang Shitong
Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Zhongguang”), 93%
owned subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC, is
entitled to two years’ exemption from the PRC corporate
income tax (“CIT”) followed by three years’ 50% relief from
the CIT. The year ended 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2010 are the first profit-making year of Beijing
Jingiao and Beijing Zhongguang for the purpose of CIT
exemption respectively.

—E T EEFEFEHBEANFE ARG ERR
HFIEFHE16.5% (Z T NF : 16.5%) 5t
g o

EHMREEER (EBEFHE) EEZRENIE
BaVFEERZIRITREE - FRERZ %
FriSBif & B25% °

RIBFE ARG HRE 2 - RPBREE 2 RS
E B3N s B AR R BEREH
BRAT(HEREB)) Rt R ERBRE
RAR (LR E]) EReEMPESZEMS
REMGR])ME  ER=FRIZhHE
FIEBRFESR HREBNCEMSHM
= HEEE)\F+_A=Z+—HE_ZT—
EFF+-A=+—ALEFESFAILREER
ERFPEEREERFE -



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

10.TAXATION (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable rates:

HE-T—

BE :

A

FRAZTHLESFE

10. %15 )

BOERMREAEZRAR X BN 2 4

2010 2009
—E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTEx FAET

Profit before taxation B B4 A1 204,375 123,435
Tax at applicable tax rate REAREAE 2BIR 52,334 28,546
Profits exempted from income tax BN FTIS T2 5 A (46,005) (24,545
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TEENRALZ ZHRBETE 2,913 5,764
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBMAZBIBFE (2,989) (3,665)
Tax allowance for capital expenditure BARRE 2 HIER R (535) 12
Underprovision in prior year BEFERETR 479 —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMBEEE 2 HIBELE 2,533 984

Utilisation of tax losses not

previously recognised ERALRIARER BIAEE = (1,667)
Taxation charge MIE 8,730 5,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE-Z-— T A=tHILFE
11.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 11.EERSRITHEAEME
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to NEEEEZHMRBAIZER LMARIREER
the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong AHEFIE161EHBENT ¢

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Executive directors: WITES -
Fees e 3,333 2,451
Share-based payment expenses VARR 5 S 15 5008 - 720
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSET B 8 18
3,341 3,189
Non-executive director: EHMITES :
Fees we 145 40
Independent non-executive directors: BYIEMITES -
Fees e 381 360
Share-based payment expenses LARR 19 2 A5 5178 - 98
381 458

3,867 3,687




HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE-Z-— T A=tHILFE
11.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 11.EERSHRITEAEME @
EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
2010 —E-EF
Pension
scheme Total
Fees contributions remuneration
BiRe
we sTEIft R 48 5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAR FER FEx
Executive directors: HMITES
Feng Yongming F5 7K R 933 - 933
Li Tao = 1,200 8 1,208
Xiao Yan BHE 1,200 - 1,200
3,333 8 3,341
Non-executive director: FHITESE ¢
Xu Lei ! ®wE 145 - 145
Independent non-executive directors: B IEFITESE -
Chan Wai Dune 2 BER 4 Uity 2 13 - 13
Dong Shi g0 120 - 120
Hu Dingdong AT R 120 - 120
Leung Wo Ping ¢ A IR 128 - 128
381 - 381
3,859 8 3,867
1 Appointed on 24 November 2009 ! TENFT+—AZTHBEERE

n
NENA+—HEHE
N

i
2 Resigned on 11 August 2009 2 i
n= FENA+—HEZRE

8 Appointed on 11 August 2009 8 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE-Z-— T A=tHILFE
11.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 11.EERSHRITEAEME @
EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
2009 —EENEF
Share-
based Pension
payment scheme Total
Fees exXpenses contributions remuneration
LARR 19 Rike
we S FE BEESA FCE0]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: WiTEgs:
Feng Yongming K 280 98 - 378
Li Tao 5 960 — — 960
Xiao Yan HE 781 215 - 996
Yeung Sau Han Agnes HER 225 — 9 234
Yu Sau Lai ! REE 205 407 9 621
2,451 720 18 3,189
Non-executive director: FHITESE
Cheung Siu Chung Cheever 2 ok ke 40 - - 40

Independent non-executive directors: B IFRITEE

Chan Wai Dune @ R 4 i 100 98 - 198
Dong Shi Ega) 85 - - 85
Hu Dingdong HER 23 — — 23
Lum Pak Sum 2 MiRER 40 - - 40
Kwok Chung Yin 2 g2 40 - - 40
Wang Chin Mong TRE 72 - - 72
360 98 - 458

2,851 818 18 3,687

ZTNFOA-BEE
NE+—A=+—HEE
NENA+—AEBE

! Resigned on 1 April 2009 1 i
2 Resigned on 21 November 2008 2 i

E
8 Resigned on 11 August 2009 8 RIEZ



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
11.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 11.EERSRITHAEME @
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FRN - BEAANESHEXIRAERETAHE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2009: LT (ZEZNF - |) o
Nil).
The five highest paid employees during the year included FR - hEBEaFEEBRE=2(ZZEZTAN
three (2009: two) directors, details of whose remuneration FWMB)EEF  BEZHFWFBCR LU
are set out above. Details of the remuneration of the BoFA BTME(CEENF  =R)HFE
remaining two (2009: three) non-directors, highest paid EEmFEEZHMFENAT

employees for the year are as follows:

2010 2009
—E-EfF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 2R EWMFIZE 2,160 1,693
Share-based payment expenses DAHQT%?ZH%’\IE — 1,418
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 24 24
2,184 3,135
The number of the highest-paid individual senior executives FENTUTEHE 2 ZEF =R TRAB AR
whose emoluments fell within the following band is as UM
follows:

Nil - HK$1,000,000 #%-1,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T-2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fortheyearended30June2010 HE-_Z-ZTE A=1+HLEE

11.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR I1L.ESERERITHAEME @
EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuea)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company or any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

12.DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company recommends the payment of a
final bonus share dividend for the year ended
30 June 2010 on the basis of one bonus share at par for
every thirty (30) existing shares of the Company held to
shareholders (2009: Nil). The bonus share issue is subject
to the passing of the appropriate resolution at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$181,042,000 (2009:
HK$110,698,000) and weighted average number of
1,513,495,000 (2009: 981,251,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

FR - AEEREAANRREFHAUESH

ATHRER IS 1”E7%ﬂ&%|f)§zﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
iT’EF%{BigiJDE‘H$EI&Z;%JED&%’EH%WWE
—2TNEFE|) o

12 H1 G

ARREFEERHEHE_ZT-ZTFA=1H
I FEZRERHA =T @O)RAR R A RN IK
B RALR (RE(E) 2 B2 R BCRIRE R BT
BEE (ZTTAF - 8) - BTRAREBEFE
ERRBFERE LRBEE ZRER

13. 5l AT

(a) EX

BEREABFZBBARRRERE A
FE(R 4R A% F181,042,00008 T (—Z 2
L 110,698,000 7T) R F AN E 1T
%Lﬁﬁzmgﬁi’ﬁm 513,495,000/%
(ZZEZT A4 : 981,251,0000%) 5T -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)

HE-T-TEAA=TALEE

13.8RE2% @

(b) Diluted (b) #8

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year is based on the adjusted profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$190,236,000
(2009: HK$110,698,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,789,133,000 (2009:
982,453,000) outstanding during the year, after
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the
Company is calculated based on the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company for the year of
HK$181,042,000 (2009: HK$110,698,000) as used
in the calculation of basic earnings per share plus
effective interest expenses on convertible notes of
HK$9,194,000 (2009: Nil).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share is
calculated based on the weighted average of
1,5183,495,000 (2009: 981,251,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year as used in the calculation of
basic earnings per share plus the weighted average
of 26,668,000 (2009:1,202,000) ordinary shares
deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the
Company'’s share options had been exercised and
the weighted average of 248,970,000 (2009: Nil)
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration as if all the Company’s convertible notes
had been converted.

REFEZSREFRF TIRBEAQ R
B A FEAL 4258 % 55 $190,236,000/8 7T
(ZZZTNF : 110,698,000/8 7T) K A4
ERITEMNZ LB METH &
1,789,133, 000 (ZEZENF -
982,453,0008%) - & BT A EEE
LTmRERTE

RRAREE AENEARE RN IR E
BREABAFAZFARQRESR A
JE 15 5% F181,042,000/8 7T (ZEE A,
F 1 110,698,000/ 7T) 5 hn Al 2 A% = 1%
ZEEF SR T9,194,0008 T (ZEF
NEB)FHE -

BREERAA T BRINEFESE
DR BEERERBRAAZFRE
77 38 A% hn#E £ 19 £01,513,495,0008%
(ZZZTNF : 981,251,0000%) B IR &
mMETTZ2EBARME T HHE
26,668,000 (ZEZ N.F : 1,202,000
BR) CEIAARREIFTA B IRED BT -
ARBEAEERITZNETFHH
248,970,000/ (ZEZNF « &) LT@R
(AR RIFTA AT R ER D& K1)
ATE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nT A Ej%%#ﬁ%lzﬁ ni

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.%% - B &%
THE GROUP EE
Furniture Plant
Computer and Office Leasehold Motor and
equipment fixtures equipment  improvements vehicles machinery Total
#AR BE
B BE4E BAERE NEEE RE BER#E s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THL AL AL TATL TATL AL
cosTt B
At 1 July 2008 RZEZN\EtA-R 123 161 100 742 1,187 - 2,313
Acquisition of subsidiaries MM BLE] 48 87 705 - - 211 1,051
Additions AE 128 77 303 428 497 - 1433
Disposal ik (121) (161) (103) - (1,187) - (1572)
Write off s (16) - o (742) - - (762)
Exchange realignment Ea% - - {4 - - (1) o)
At 30 June 2009 RZEENERA=TH 162 164 997 428 497 210 2,458
Additions RE 134 b1 334 - 6,520 - 7,049
Exchange realignment EXRE 2 1 12 - 37 54
At 30 June 2010 RZE-SERF=1H 298 226 1343 428 7,054 212 9,561
ACCUMULATED ZiHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2008 RZEE/\EtA-H 40 27 15 182 232 - 496
Charge for the year FENE 3 46 250 279 129 53 793
Eliminate on disposal REEREH (53 35) (33 - (328) - (449)
Eliminate on write off S 1525 2 - - (306) - - (308)
At 30 June 2009 RZZENERA=TH 21 3 232 155 3 53 532
Charge for the year EEfE 47 55 329 218 1118 64 1,831
Exchange realignment EHBE - - 5 - 5 1 11
At 30 June 2010 RZE-Z£5A=TH 68 9 566 373 1,156 118 2,374
NET BOOK VALUE BERE
At 30 June 2010 RZE-Z£5A=TH 230 183 77 55 5,808 94 7,187
At 30 June 2009 RZEENERA=TH 141 126 765 273 464 157 1926
The net book value of the Group’s assets held under finance RZE—ZFRA=1TH FAAEEEIR

SERERERNBEEZEEZEREFES
1,511,000 7T (ZEZNF : 464,000 7T) °

lease included in the total amount of a motor vehicle at
30 June 2010 amounted to HK$1,511,000 (2009:
HK$464,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE-T-TEAASTALEE

14. % - BB RRE @

(Continued)
THE COMPANY PiNNES]
Furniture
Computer and Office Leasehold
equipment fixtures equipment improvements Total
RAR HE
ElZE EBEHEE BAERE MELE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET FTER FTEX TET
COST B
At 1 July 2008 RZZEENELF—H 71 161 9 742 1,070
Additions B 7 - 2 - 9
Disposal HE (78) (161) (98) — (337)
Write off b - - - (742) (742)
At 30 June 2009 RZZENAER
and 2010 22 A=1H - - - — -
ACCUMULATED R E
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2008 RZZEENELF—H 10 27 15 182 234
Charge for the year FEME 7 8 18 124 157
Eliminate on disposal R E R {17) (35) (39) - (85)
Eliminate on write off P8 B $EC 3 - - - (306) (306)
At 30 June 2009 RZZENAER
and 2010 —T-ZFRA=ZFH - - - - -
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 30 June 2010 R-E-ZFx A=FH - - - — -
At 30 June 2009 RZZEENF A=TA - - - - -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
15.GOODWILL 15. &
HK$’000
FHET
cosT R
At 1 July 2008 RZFEZENF+H—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries W S M B A A 284,846
At 30 June 2009 RZEZNFAA=FH 284,846
Adjustment on contingent consideration BRSANREZ AR 468,300
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZFA=1H 753,146
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 July 2008 and 30 June 2009 RZEENFLA—BURZZEENEF
and 2010 NZZE-ZTFXA=+H -
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AR FE
At 30 June 2010 WZ_E-ZTFA=+H 753,146
At 30 June 2009 RZEZNFAA=FH 284,846
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units BESEEAKSERSELESE LU T ¢
as follows:
2009
—E-EfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
Wireless digital terrestrial television I TH 4 AR BN BAR AN AR
network equipment integration e (FEE1)
(note 1) 443,763 168,412
Digital cable television 2-way BREMUBREER IS
conversion (note 2) (Ft5E2) 309,383 116,434

753,146 284,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fortheyearended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

4

15. GOODWILL (continueq) 15. -ﬁ:ﬁ % (4&)
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. The core technology used in wireless digital terrestrial 1. HMEESENERBRREENELIAZZ

television network equipment integration business is under
the technology umbrella group of the encrypted integrated
circuits business.

2. The design technology of the wireless digital audio integrated
circuits business has grown and diversified to application
in the digital cable television 2-way conversion business and
expected to benefit from the synergy of the combination of
both businesses.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the
wireless digital terrestrial television network equipment
integration has been determined based on value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-
year period. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 19% (2009: 10%).

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the
digital cable TV 2-way conversion has been determined
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a eleven-year period. The discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 16% (2009: 10%).

The Group management’s determined budgeted growth
rate and gross profit margin based on past performance
and market expectation. The discount rate used in pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant cash
generating units.

DB INE S 3 T 2 Sl T/ A o

2. ﬂfv?%ﬂi%fﬁ’iﬁkm)—#z ARiTE #RRT
CWERREGBUBREMBEES 2 E
Fﬁ W FRE BN A G IR TS 2 19 R 2K

ﬁ]lo

HESGEUERAERBERCRCEESE
T2 AR E SR IAEREENEE - BES
BEBREMEZVRBEAE RS RETAA
MET ' AEAF  ARBEEeRERAZITR
EKEB19% (ZTETNF 1 10%) °

BRENBRENBEZREEFLE T 2K
CeFEIAERBENEEL  RESRERE

HEZBEEAEZReRSRAMETE -

BT ARBRESRERB ZITREAE16%
ZZETAF 10%) ©

A I8 [ 2 TR R R A R AR A
ERERAISHEBER  FEA 2 FRERT
B ERBREANRSEEET AN TR
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

HE-T-TEAASTALEE

1878 i B 2 B A PR B

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & &
Technology Development
fee costs Total
Bii&H PN st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHEL FAT FHEL
COoSsT B2
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZENFLA—H - — -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g4 )N 9,019 6,051 15,070
Additions NE 4,550 - 4,550
Exchange realignment 0E A% (48) (33) (81)
At 30 June 2009 RZEZTNFAA=TH 13,521 6,018 19,539
Additions NE 18,188 - 18,188
Exchange realignment b 5 FA & 267 59 326
At 30 June 2010 RZE-ZTFA=1H 31,976 6,077 38,053
ACCUMULATED 25t RAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZNFE+LA—H - - -
Impairment R E 674 452 1,126
Exchange realignment BEE 5, B 1) 1) @)
At 30 June 2009 RZZEZTNFRA=TH 673 451 1,124
Impairment A 2,036 754 2,790
Exchange realignment B 5 AR & 22 10 32
At 30 June 2010 RZE-—ZFXA=1H 2,731 1,215 3,946
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 30 June 2010 RZE-ZTFA=1H 29,245 4,862 34,107
At 30 June 2009 RZEZNFANA=1H 12,848 5,567 18,415
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

17.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17.XMB AR Z# &
2010 2009
—E—-FF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHE T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRRD  IRAKA 1,000 1,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B R R FIE 914,819 338,561
Less: Provision for doubtful debts W REREE - -
914,819 338,561

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free HfEBAREHAEERI - RENEBTEENR

and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying B ZEREWMBARRIEZ EEHEREEAY
amounts of these amounts due from subsidiaries BRE
approximate to their fair values.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBRRZFHBOAT ¢
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EMALK BEAR RRAFERE
HEARER EENY BRRE/ZREL 2B TREH
Direct Indirect
EE  BE
Heng Xin Management Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Provision for
ERERBERAR BA HK$1 each management services
1,000,000% 8 REE 1T REERRS
ZERR
Win Spring International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
IRERERAT REARREE  IREREEIZTIEER REER
Rich Summit Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
BEREERAA REEMREE IREREEIET LAR RERR
Merit Power Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
SEMEBERAA RERAREE  IREREEIRTC ERR RERR
Sino Will Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
EBARREE \REREEIXT EER RERR
Star Hub Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
EBARREE \REREEIXTI SRR RERR
China Champion Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Investment holding and
HEEREBRAH BA HK$1 each trading of electronic parts
10,000k FREE1ET RERRR
LBk EEETERM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
17.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMB AR ZE &= @)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
FRMBALK BRTR RRAFERE
WEARER EEBY BRRE/ZREL 2B TEEH
Direct Indirect
ER HE
Shenzhen Champion Maxiumic The People’s Republic of RMB29,000,000 - 100% Investment holding,
Technologies Co., Ltd. China AK%29,000,0007 digital cable television
AR ERERRERAA REARLA 2-way conversion business,
general trading and
provision for
technical services
REZR - BREM
SREMPERE -
—fRE 5 RRE R MR
Huzhou Maxium IC Design The People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100% Research, design,
Co., Limited China AK#%10,000,0007T manufacturing and
BNBEHE FRABREAAT REARLTE trading of wireless digital
audio products and
related solutions and
services
B - Raf - BER
EERGHNEEER
RIAEER AR KRS
Beijing Jingiao Hengtai The People’s Republic of HK$100,000,000 - 93% Wireless digital
Technology Company Limited China 100,000,000/ 70 terrestrial television
IREBERNEERAA PEARLRNE network equipment
integrated business,
research, design,
manufacturing and
trading of information
safety products
WEESELERES
REERER  HE-
Rt BEREERS
ZRED
Beijing Zhongguang Shitong The People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 93% Wireless digital
Technology Company Limited China AR #20,000,0007 terrestrial television
ERPEREREERAA REARLTNE network equipment
integrated business,
research, design,
manufacturing and
trading of information
safety products
WEESEUERES
REEHER B
23 WERERER
ZRED
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERAVINDEERBEAEB AT EEERSE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results FEIEAEEEEFETESH I MBER
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets Al BERA  WILHEMMBARZFEE
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in BRTLE

the opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
18.INVENTORIES 18. &
2010 2009
—E-EfF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Raw materials JR K 117 219
Work in progress EEE 1,904 2,948
Finished goods SLPK o 868 837
2,889 4,004
19.TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEURBR &K
2010 2009
=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T T
Trade receivables due from FERERBEALERER
related parties (note 35(a)) (B$5E35(a)) 1,230 313
Other trade receivables H b pE UK BR 3R 678,700 277,309
679,930 277,622
Less: portion classified W D BERRBEERNND
as current assets (452,126) (228,777)
Non-current portion SEREIEB1D 227,804 48,845

The ageing analysis of trade receivables was as follows:

FEW R 2 BRI D AT N T

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FEIT

0 — 30 days TE=1H 203,795 97,289
31 — 90 days =+—Zh+H 19,150 82,005
91 — 180 days h+—Z=2—8NA+H 83,641 96,810
Over 180 days = PA =0 > 373,344 1,518
679,930 277,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

19.TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. FEURBR X @)

EBRERBE 2 BRERREERD>TOT

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due
but not impaired are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-EfF ZTENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHIT

0 — 30 days TE=1H 68,728 3,588
31 — 90 days =+—Z=h+H 11,153 2,738
91 — 180 days n+—=—aN+H 6,016 3,066
Over 180 days = = 0> 15,957 313
101,854 9,705

Given the project phases for the two major customers of
the Group in the wireless digital terrestrial television system
integration and digitisation span three to five years,
corresponding to the infrastructure related upgrades at the
provincial level, the credit term granted to these two major
customers is within three years from the date of delivery.
Accordingly, HK$227,804,000 (2009: HK$48,845,000) is
expected to be recovered or settled in more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record maintained with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

BRAEERBEREFPAEEGEAESR
EGERREML s BEERRFRA=ZH
F - BEREERURSHEERE  WETH
BEERFPZEEHRRRINBHEF=F
A e Btk - 227,804,000 T (ZZEENF -
48,845,000/ 7T) AT G IR E+ =
EAREBKEREE -

EEMERRE 2 BRREAR BT A Rif
RHRBERBUITFAR - REBEL
B ARPEERRBARZSEREHRE
B NREEFPZEEERTEEREE -
MR KA R R AR B E  REEIL &
WREFEHFEEMNERRREMNEEER
B o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

20.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

21.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. BT FIR ~ BE R H B

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH ENANS

2010 2009 2010
—g2-BF —TTNF —B-2F

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
T TR TERT T

Prepayments TEfT5RIB 12,957 4,986 — 19
Deposits Ze 13,480 3,848 559 564
Other receivables b fE W 5RIR 2,911 13,089 21 1,177

29,348 21,923 580 1,760

The amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after
more than one year are HK$Nil (2009: HK$644,000) and
HKS$Nil (2009: HK$564,000) respectively. All of the other
prepayments and deposits are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

REBEBRKAQGBHAIR—FERKE S ERE
XHzEeREHINARTEBT(ZTEZENEF
644,000/ 70) REHEITT (ZEZTNF : 564,000
BT o EEMMEEMEMNRERIZE TR —
FRWEISERRZ L -

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED 2]1. FEW— R BAE A R IR
COMPANY
Balance Balance Maximum amount
at at outstanding
30 June 2010 30 June 2009 during the year
R-Z2-2F R=-ZBZAF
AA=tHZ AA=tHZ FRKREE
Name of company L g2 33 EEtHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET FET
Beijing Hengtal Technologies IEREREBEREH
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hengtai”) BEREAERF
(HemtEHR]) 1,993 1,974 1,993
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

21.

22.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY (continued)

Beijing Hengtai holds 7% equity interest of Beijing Jingiao.
93% of equity interest of Beijing Jingiao was owned by the
Company indirectly.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
terms of repayment.

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and in hand RTERERE

22.

2010
—z-%5

HK$’000
FERT

65,401

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

21.

JE Wit — 8] B 1 R 3R IE ()

IRERFAILREE % IME - RARIFEESR
LR E1593% 2 MR HE -

ZREREER 2R NERETEERY -

MITERERE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AN

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
T T

2010
—2-®5
HK$°000
Fi#

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
T T
92,410

6,660 28,344

As at 30 June 2010, the cash at bank and in hand of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) which amounted to approximately HK$37,789,000
(2009: HK$31,704,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RZZ—ZTFA=FH  AEBZRITHER
AP REUARE (ARBDFEZEE -
#AB37,789, 0008 L (ZZEZTNF -
31,704,000 7T) - ARETAIEELBAH
MHE - AT - ARIEP E 2 HNEE BRD KA
[ EERNEEEMAT  AEEEEEREE
RERITINEEE ZIRITIARK IR BEMD
B o

RITEFRIFIRTTE B 7500 R T B T R B
RS - |RITESRERREERFRIHER
RECERZIRTT °
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Fortheyearended30June2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
23.TRADE PAYABLES 23. FEfTERFX

2009
—g-%F —EERE

HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET T

Trade payables due to related parties FERTBRAEATIRR

(note 35(a)) (B 7E35(a) 17,471 63,366
Other trade payables H A FEBRR 206,218 105,380
223,689 168,746

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the PRMEHAREMBERZERSITAOT ¢

reporting period is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-=fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHEIT

Within 30 days =+ HHUR 145,688 58,298
31 to 60 days =+—Z=x+H 507 57,920
61 to 90 days ANT—E=NTH 314 50,663
Over 90 days N+BHE 77,180 1,865
223,689 168,746

24.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 HiERIAREFE R

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE FRF

2010 2009 2010 2009

—B-%F —TTNF —B-BF —TTNF

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FER THET T TAET

Other payables and HEfbEMARIER
accruals EEtER 35,481 9,232 1,639 1,093
Receipt in advance TEUER K 2,692 — - —

38,173 9,232 1,639 1,093




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o & BT SRR M R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

25.0BLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE

26.

LEASES

The Group leases motor vehicles for its business operations.

The lease was classified as a finance lease and had a

remaining lease term of five years.

At 30 June 2010, the total future minimum lease payments

under finance leases and their present values were as

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

25.MEHMAEE

1878 i B 2 B A PR B

AEBHETEEEBLEMRE - ZEHIR
MEMELY BRI HEFHALF -

R-ZE-—ZFA=1TH BEBEHOZRKEK
EHSEBMARENT :

follows:
GROUP PN
Present value of
Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
BREHES BEHEESBRE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —FTThhEF ZB-Z2EF —TTIhF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T FE T FABTT
Amounts payable: FETROE -
Within one year —FA 430 107 345 78
In the second year FEF 430 107 375 84
In the third to fifth years, BEZEFERF
inclusive (BEERFEBREEN) 537 293 511 265
1,397 507 1,231 427
Future finance charges RKBEER (166) (80) - —
1,231 427 1,231 427
Portion classified DEERY
as current liabilities BEHH (345) (78)
Non-current portion IER BN BN 886 349

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5.25% (2009:
5.25%) per annum and subsequently settled after the year

end.

26. KB —BIRREZEX

BRERSEEM  BENE525% (—FFAH,
F:5.25%) 5B ARNFREER -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. EEHIEERE
Intangible assets
BEEE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 July 2008 RZZETN\F+HA—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 2 ) 3,010
Credited to profit or loss FABEE (282)
Exchange realignment b X FH (15)
At 30 June 2009 RZZETNFRA=1H 2,713
Credited to profit or loss FFABTEE (470)
Exchange realignment ME WA 24
At 30 June 2010 R-E-—ZFRA=TH 2,267
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of REBREBEE 2 BIEETE /519,844,000
HK$19,844,000 (2009: HK$4,344,000) that are available T(ZTZTNF : 4,344,000/ 7T) + Al ERHA
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the FER S EIB . Ral 2 RRERBIGETF]
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets BLEHIBEEW AR ZEEE T ARR - B
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as EERDACDERE - REBEBZARES -
they have arisen in the companies that have been loss-
making for some time.
28.CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE 28. E{T AT IR R =
On 4 December 2009, an aggregate of HK$264,725,000 RZBTZNF+=-AMNAE  RIeBWESE]
principal amount of redeemable convertible notes were R RS B SR 18 | 25 PO BN R G (iR 1B B 3
issued upon fulfillment of the fourth payment condition of TR &5 A 264,725,000/ T 2 7] fE B 7] #
the “Jingiac Acquisition” and “Maxium Acquisition”. Further REE - E—PFBHERERRBPAEZE
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated NF+ZAEBEZAEAN

4 December 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-T—

TERASTHILFE

28.CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

(Continued)

The notes carry zero coupon and convertible into ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.34 per conversion share (subject to pro-rata
adjustments on capital structure changes) at any time
during the period commencing from the date of issue of
convertible notes. Unless previously converted, lapsed or
redeemed by the Company, any outstanding convertible
notes shall be redeemed on the fifth anniversary of the issue
date of the convertible notes.

The fair value of the liability component, included in the
convertible notes, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note. The fair value
of the equity conversion component, which is included in
shareholders’ equity in convertible notes reserve, was
valued by the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model.

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of
financial position are calculated as follows:

28.fEfT R

A ER @

ZEZBERTERE  RNUBRRERZETERR
ST AR A (] 65 ] AT S B A B AR (7083478 7T
(IR EARBE DR PR FE) 2NE 5
BRELBRARAEBE - BREABEARAR
B RMEBEES - EAIEAR LS 2 TR
BARAHRERERTANZENBFERE
[B] o

R RBER ER D 2 XA FETRRAST A%
BREZTSHNERAE - Ba i BNz
BAA N7 — & B AT — B B BT
ffE - WET AR RIBFEEZBIRERA o

R BIRR R AR T RBREERFTENT

HK$’000

FHT

At 1 July 2008 RZFEENF+EH—H —
Issuance of notes by the Company KRAREITRIE 114,100
Effective interest expenses for the year AEEZEBRMERE 1,749
Conversion to shares of the Company LRy =Y /NEI §5) (115,849)
At 30 June 2009 R_ZEZNFAA=1H —
Issuance of notes by the Company KRB EITRE 167,500
Effective interest expenses for the year AFEEZERFERAX 9,194
At 30 June 2010 WZE-ZTFA=1+H 176,694

Interest expenses on the convertible notes issued are
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of approximately 9.6% to the
liability components.

BRI ABREREZ N B IRERX
% BB EERNIAKN.6% 2 BRFXRAHE
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29.SHARE CAPITAL 29. iz 7
2009
—ETHE
Number Number
of share of share
g 4= 1 & B
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’'000
TR TAERT Fi& FAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE0.01ATT 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
HK$0.01 each 2 & B
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE :
At beginning of year RE] 1,385,683 13,857 558,000 5,580
Issue of shares upon placing FlEEEMELT 100,000 1,000 - -
(note) ZW&tn (BIE)
Issue of shares upon conversion R aRER
of convertible notes T2 R - - 778,603 7,786
Issue of shares upon exercise TR T 1T
of share options (note 30) 2Bt (KH3E30) 78,220 782 49,080 491
At end of year RER 1,563,903 15,639 1,385,683 13,857
Note: BEE -
On 27 August 2009, the Company, Team Effort Investments Limited RZZETNFNAZ++ER » RRAF] - Team Effort

(“Team Effort”) and DBS Asia Capital Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which Team Effort
has agreed to place, and the Placing Agent has agreed to procure
not less than six placees, on a best effort basis, for the purchase
of up to 100,000,000 shares of the Company at the placing price
of HK$0.70 per placing shares (“Placing”).

On the same date, the Company and Team Effort entered into a
“top-up” subscription agreement pursuant to which Team Effort has
agreed to subscribe for such number of subscription shares which is
equivalent to the number of shares actually placed under the Placing,
being a maximum number of 100,000,000 subscription shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.70 per subscription share (the
“Subscription”). Details of these transactions are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 August 2009. The Placing and
the Subscription was completed on 1 September 2009 and 9
September 2009 respectively. A total of 100,000,000 new shares
were issued and approximately HK$68 million was raised for the
general working capital of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Investments Limited ([Team Effort]) £2 2 & g5 /1 &l
BBRERAR(RERED TR ERE - Bt -
Team EffortAIEEE - MESREREZEZAS N
REETDPRANBERREAZZRESRKH0.708 T2
fid & &8 5 5 % 100,000,000/ A~ R FIRE D (AL & F
H]) o

[ H - ARQF ETeam Efforts] 32 [A B ¥ | R 17
% 0 Btk Team Effort B AR 1 0.707%
TRZREBEREEENBELEFTEERREZR
HEE 2 RERD - BI&%100,000,0000% REEAX 1D
([REEHE]) - ZERH2FBEHRARARBHA
—EEAFENAZ thEIZ/“iW c BREEELR
BEBEARNECR-_ZTNFNA—BR-ZZETAF
N ANBTERK ° A F100,000,0000% 57 A H 31T -
I B # 5 4968,000,0008 T AEAR AR R EK B A
Blz—MEEES -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE_Z-ZFRNA=ZTAHLHFEE
30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 0. UEGEHEERUBNAERT
TRANSACTIONS 2
(a) The Company had adopted an employee share option (@) ARRAERZZEZE=F=A+=-HEH
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) on 13 March 2003. —IHEEBARETE ([HRERT Sl -
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable BEREFSEESAEEARIEEL H
the Group to grant options to selected participants, EOEAEEEBIRBEESES
which include any person who is a full time or part AEBE R REIBHDAFEMA
time employee or director of the Group, a consultant T REERE  (EAREHAREEME
or agent of or advisor to the Group, as incentives or BEZ 2B B o

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

() The terms and conditions of the grants are as () AT ARHEREZ G EEY
follows:
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
EREZ
ITHZA BEGY BRER
’000
T
Options granted to directors:
RTEEZBRE -
— on 18 February 2009 5,200 One month from the date of grant 3 years
—RZZZAF-_A+N\R BB st —E A 3%
Options granted to employees:
RTREE ZBRE -
— on 18 February 2009 74,800 One month from the date of grant 3 years
—RZZZAF_A+N\R BB st —E A 3F
Total share options 80,000

BREaH
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 0. UEGEHEERUBNAERT
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (&)
(a)  (Continued) (@ &)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise (i) AT ARBRE,EE RNEFHT
prices of share options are as follows: (5 :

2010
“Z2-2f
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of option eXercise price of option
MEFH MEFH
(ki EREHE e BREXE
‘000 ‘000
T4 1
QOutstanding at the ENRTE
beginning of the year HK$0.37 &7t 35,920 - -
Granted during the year FRERL - - HK$0.66 T 135,000
Lapsed during the year FRERH HK$0.37 B 70 (2,000)  HK$1.07 BT (55,000)
Exercised during the year ERBTE HK$0.37 & (23,2200  HK$0.37 BT (44,080)
QOutstanding at the ERRTE
end of the year HK$0.37 B 7 10,700  HK$0.37 B 35,920
The weighted average share price at the date FREITE 2 ERERTTE B E 2 MEFER
of exercise for shares options exercised during BRO79BIT(ZZEZNF : 0.7087T) °

the year was HK$0.79 (2009: HK$0.70).

The options outstanding at 30 June 2010 had RZE—ZFNA=THERTEBRE 1T
an exercise price of HK$0.37 (2009: HK$0.37) FEAOITET(ZEZNE - 0.3787T) © M
and a weighted average remaining contractual EFHBRTENFHAI. 265 (ZETNF

life of 1.72 years (2009: 2.72 years). 2.72%) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 0.UEZEERUBRDAERR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 5 (#)
(a)  (Continued) (@ &)
(i)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) BREZAFERER
The fair value of services received in return for AL EREMESRE 2 AFE
share options granted are measured by T2 EZMREBRE 2 A FEE -
reference to the fair value of share options FHETS AR 2 fh 5t A B RIRA
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the R-HTRETHIREBRAERE - %
services received is measured based on Black BAIMATERE SOFH - A
— Scholes option pricing model. The N — &R BRI EE
contractual life of the option is used as an input RATITR 2 TEE] -

into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the Black — Scholes
option pricing model.

18 February 2009

Grant date R AH —ZEEREFE=A+NA
Fair value at measurement date RetEB 2 A2FAE HK$0.098 & T
Share price f& (& HK$0.351 & 7T
Exercise price 1T11E HK$0.37 /&7t
Expected volatility TEHA R i 64.60%
Option life R i 7 £ A1 1.5 years 4F
Expected dividends TEERRR B —
Risk free interest rate 3 g 1) = 1.871%
The expected volatility is based on the historical AR IR IR LR IRETE - TREIR EIRE LR
volatility. Expected dividends are based on EFtE - THERBR 2 EH B AT ER
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective FFTEBERTE -

input assumption could materially affect the fair
value estimate.
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30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

(o)

Pursuant to a general mandate (“General Mandate”)
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 24 November 2008 and
27 October 2009 respectively, the Directors are
authorised, at their discretion, to allot and issue shares
of the Company up to 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
on 24 November 2008 and 27 October 2009

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

30.UEELEERURM ASERR

(%)

BEEENRAARDIRZTEZTN\F+
—AZtmMBR=ZZEZAFTA=+t
BRETZBREBFAS LERZ MK
BE(—REE])  ZEZERENBILE
MBI THEBE_EZENEF+—A=
FTHARZZEEAFTFAZTEHERR
AIEBITRAEBERE20% 2 AR A K
7o ATERETDIRE —RIZERL -

respectively. The following options were granted under
the General Mandate.

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as ()  MATAEEBRDBERE G RIEHE
follows:
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
BREZ
ITA¥A BERY BRER
‘000
T

Options granted to an advisor
of the Company (the “Advisor”):
RPARNE—RER ([BERFE]) 2 BRHE
— on 17 February 2009 60,000 Immediately from 1 year
the date of grant
—RZZEZAE_R++A R B HRE RS 15
Options granted to a consultant
of the Company (the “Consultant”):
BRYIARE—BHAAN(THEAAD

2 BARAE -
— on 10 November 2009 90,000 Immediately from 1 year
—RZZEENF+—ATA the date of grant 14
R B RN 5
Total share options 150,000

BREAE
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30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

(o)

(Continued)

(i)

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning EMEE

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

0.UEZEERUBRDAERR
g ®)

) (&)

(i)  ATRBEEZHE RINEFHT
(8 -

2010
=S
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number

exercise price of option exercise price of option
mETH il S

%kE BREHA (it EREHA

‘000 ‘000

T T

of the year HK$0.305 7 7t 55,000 - -
Granted during the year FRERL HK$0.73 7t 90,000  HK$0.305 57T 60,000
Exercised during the year FABHE HK$0.305 & 7 (55,0000  HK$0.305 BT (5,000)
Qutstanding at the end ERRITR

of the year HK$0.73 &t 90,000  HK$0.305 &t 55,000

The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise for shares options exercised during
the year was HK$0.70 (2009: HK$0.64).

The options outstanding at 30 June 2010 had
an exercise price of HK$0.73 (2009: HK$0.305)
and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 0.36 year (2009: 0.63 year).

FREITE Z BIRERTTE B B 2 TR
BARO70BIT (ZEZNSF  0.6487T) °

RZE—ZTFEXA=-TAERTEBREZTT
FEAOTIEL (ZEZENF  0.30557T) -
MEFHHBTANFHE0IF(ZEZTN
£ 1 0.634F) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

30.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 0O.UEEEHEERUBRNARERR
TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

(b)  (Continued)

(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) BEREsATFERERE

For the options granted to the Advisor and the
Consultant, due to the uniqueness of the service
provided by them, the fair value option is measured
by the services performed by them, taking into

LR TR R A Z BB
5 HREER R A AR R MRS
2R BEREZ AFEIRE
BEEBMENMGAAMBIRLED

RESUAREMEZRERR - BB
AR EAAFREZIREAE - B
BABERARRBEMAR-TTH
F_ATEBAR-ZFTNF+T—A
TRZRE -

account the nature and number of working hours
of the professional spent, along with other out-of-
pocket expenses. Details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 17
February 2009 and 10 November 2009.

(©)  R¥RE HIR R B HY R R 17150 8 B 2 16k

(c) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options

at end of the reporting period are as follows: TR
2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNEF
Number Number
2 E 2B
Exercise period Exercise price ‘000 ‘000
1THEH TEE T T
17 February 2009 to HK$0.305 - 55,000
16 February 2010 0.305%8 7T
“EENF_A+tEHE
—ZE-FTF-A+AH
18 March 2009 to HK$0.37 10,700 35,920
17 March 2012 0.37%& 7T
“EENF=ZA+NBE
—E-——F=A++tH
10 November 2009 to HK$0.73 90,000 -
9 November 2010 0.73%8 7T
—EENEFET—ATHZE
—ZE-TF+—-ANA
100,700 90,920
Each option entitles the holders to subscribe for one HHERERTEREAREARARFT—RER

B 2 HER

ordinary share in the Company.
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

31.RESERVES 31.f#%
THE COMPANY PIN/NE]
Investment Share  Convertible
Share Capital valuation option note  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RE BRE EE:L
ki BhfE  fERE % SRS gitER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
ThR Tt Tt TR Tin Tin ThR
At 1 July 2008 RZZEN\E+A-H 110,320 (599) 132 - - (49,712) 60,141
Transfer on disposal of BRBETENERE
avallable-for-sale investments - - (132) - - - (132)
Issue of convertible notes EODED e - - - - 166,447 - 156,447
Issue of new shares EEki 264,510 - - - (156,447) - 108,063
Recognition of share-based payments B2 bR {) BEHR 3 - - - 14,738 - - 14738
Share options exercised Bz BRiE 21745 - - (4,401) - - 17,344
Release upon cancel of vested HHCRREREREE
share options - - - (5,825) - 5,825 -
Share Issue expenses EARHAT (15) - - - - - (19)
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE
for the year - - - - - (81,87) (31,871)
At 30 June 2009 RZZENERA=TH 396,560 (599) - 4512 - (75,758) 324,715
Issue of convertiole notes BITRREE - - - - 300,800 - 300,800
Issue of new shares B 69,000 - - - - - 69,000
Share issue expenses BIRHOES [2,041) - - - - - [2,041)
Recognition of share-based NN BERAR
payments - - - 650 - - 650
Share options exercised e ERE 27,853 - - (3.270) - - 24583
Release upon cancel of vested HHERRERER
share options fE - - - (196) - 196 -
Release upon deregistration HEEE-HNELRE
of a subsidiary i3] - 509 - - - (599) -
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE
for the year - - - - - (18,620) (18,620)
At 30 June 2010 RZE-TERA=TH 491,372 - - 1,696 300,800 (94,781) 699,087
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31.

32.

RESERVES (Continued)
Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the difference between the
addition registered capital invested by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, over the fair value of the
intangible assets injected by the non-controlling
shareholder.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to directors, employees and advisors of the
Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 3.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes obligations under finance leases, loan from a
shareholder, equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

32.

BiaEz ERAZEARR AR RER
E—NN\—FREDE EERT) AR -

RN R

EXFBERE—HNEAR 2 —RIFERER
BAZ BRI B AN 32 A R R AR BT A
BVEEZRFEZER-

BE 5 fE 1

L b B RS RS R 2 A
R -

BIRERE

BAERBREREN B ARG REM
NHARAEARRERZR T ARAES
BENEBZERLMARITEBREZ AT
'

BARERE

AEBETEEES  UERAEERNEES
BEALRECE T NEE  ARTBERERE
HERAR  BARENTENARRFIMEAE
o REE s BERKEEFUARBFTE -

AEB 2 ERNGERRBEY - AP EEREHEY

B RE—BBRRZERRARRLRERE
AR (BROCETRARRERE) -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

32.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the new shares issues or the issue of new debt.

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group
disposed of its entire interests in Right Source
Investment Limited and Cableplus Group Limited at
a consideration of HK$14,163,000 and HK$1
respectively. The net assets of the disposed
subsidiaries at the date of disposal are summarised

ARRBFRERAENEE - ERRFTZ—
w1 EFEREAR ZRAREZERE AN
2R - EREEZHBER  AEE/HE
BEITHRMDIBITHEFAEELERELRE
BRE T4 -

B.EEHREGRERME

(a) HEMB QA

@ZifQ CRFENA=ZTRHLEFE K
B 5 A LA{E 14,163,000 7T R 178 7T
HEHERNRERE GR AR KCableplus
Group LimitedZ & 30 #Ez - FTEEH B
ARIRNHERRZEEFERMBET ¢

as follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets disposal of: HEEEFE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 1,633
Cash at bank RITER 12,510
14,143
Release of reserve: BB
Capital reserve BN 4)
Exchange fluctuation reserve PE W e (45)
Investment valuation reserve KEMBERE (472)
13,622
Gain on disposal & & 541
Consideration RE 14,163
Satisfied by cash LATR & S 1+ 14,163
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33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BVEZERERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (continueq) (a) HEMEB LT @
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EBRHEWNBARIZAERRSEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries are as MAFEI AT
follows:
2009
—ZTNF
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration received BUWRESNRE 14,163
Cash at bank disposed of HERITFRK (12,510)
Net inflow of cash in respect of EEHEWBRARZ
the disposal of subsidiaries e R AFEE 1,653
The business sold during the year ended 30 June HEZZTNFAAZTHLEFELEZEB
2009 did not contribute to the Group’s turnover and WARABREE 2 EEFTRER - WEAEE
incurred a loss of HK$5,556,000 which reduced the 5,556,000/ ' SEHE-_TETANFNA=1
consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June 2009 HIEFE 2456 % R 25,556,000 7T °
by the same amount.
The business sold during the year ended 30 June HEZEZNFAA-THLEFENECER
2009 contributed net operating cash outflow of AAEBzEERSRLFHEAEMECERSR
HK$12,559,000 to the Group’s net operating cash HF%812,559,0008 7T °
outflow.
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WiBKIB 7]
()  On 23 September 2008, the Group acquired () RZBEENFHLAZ+=H &&
the entire issued share capital of Sino Will & 7] — & 78 7 28 = 75 W & Sino Will
Limited (“Maxium Acquisition”) from an Limited 2 2 &P E B 1T AR A (TREERUL
independent third party at the total cost of BEIHE])  BREKLRAR
acquisition HK$334,400,000 (subject to 334,400,000 7T (7] T # %) o
adjustments).
Details of this transaction were set out in the RIER G ZHBHENARTIBEA

Company’s circular dated 29 August 2008. ZEENEFENRZTNBZBEEK
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Continued)

(0

(Continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities, stating at

the fair value and net carrying amount, arising

from the acquisition are as follows:

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

B.EEHERNERME @

(b) BB B~ B (@)

Acquirees’ carrying

M @&

1878 i B 2 B A PR B

R EmEL 2 A FEMRES
BIRRZATBREERABNT

amount before
business Fair value Fair
combination adjustment value
RREAR
REREH
BZREE DYERE AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TET TER
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BiE Rk fE 986 - 986
Intangible assets apEE 3,028 12,042 15,070
Inventories FE& 3,151 - 3,151
Trade receivables IR 2278 - 2278
Prepayments, deposits and BB BE2R
other receivables Hi s 3,418 - 3,418
Cash at bank and in hand ROEFRAE 860 - 860
Trade payables BT (2,053) - (2,053)
Other payables and accruals EERTERETER (3,407) - (3,407)
Other loans EER (8,563) - (8,563)
Deferred tax liabilities ERRBEER - (3,010) (3,010)
Net (liabllities)/assets acquied ~ FTliiE (Bf8) /EEFE (302) 9,032 8,730
Goodwil HE 452,988
Direct cost relating to the BBYE ERNE
acquisition (996)
Total cost of acquisition Wiig 2 BN 460,722
Satisfied by: ATBIAAZA -
Cash paid in 2008 RZEENELf RS 15,000
Convertible notes at fair value ~ BAFERTZ THREER
For the year ended HEZZTNE
30 June 2009 AAZTHLEE 163,212
For the year ended BE-T-EF
30 June 2010 AAZTHLEE 282,510

460,722
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-T—

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

TERA=ZTRILEHFE

BVGZEHRERERMEE

(b) WEEMT B~ B @

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(Continued)

(0

(i)

(Continued)

The fair values of convertible notes were
determined by the directors of the Company
with reference to valuation performed by Norton
Appraisals Limited and Roma Appraisals
Limited, independent valuers.

Included in turnover and profit for the year
ended 30 June 2009 is HK$81,870,000 and
HK$45,457,000 respectively since its
acquisition.

Had these business combinations been effected
at the beginning of the year ended 30 June
2009, the turnover of the group would have
been HK$86,187,000, and the profit for the year
ended 30 June 2009 would have been
HK$41,807,000.

On 23 September 2008, the Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of Star Hub
Investments Limited (“Jingiao Acquisition”) from
an independent third party at the total cost of
acquisition of HK$215,050,000 (subject to
adjustments).

Details of this transaction were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 29 August 2008.

(i)

(%)

ABMEREZ A FHEDHANARE
E2EFUAEMEZERFEE
RAEMEFBERFEERARE
TZIEEERE -

BHE_ZTNFAA=TAHLFE
e TR R R o Bl e E B WEE A
IR 7 & E81,870,0007% 7T K i
45,457,000 7T ©

MZSEEBAHREBE_STNF
NAZTHIEFERARET - 8]
AEEHE-_ZTNFA=TH
IEFE 2 & 3% 586,187,000/
T+ a A A41,807,00008 7T °

RZEZENFNLAZ+T=HB*&
& 17— & 8 32 8 = 75 W BB Star Hub
Investments Limited 2 2B E 217
BAR(T2BKEEIE]) - LUEERK
N /215,050,000 ¢ (A] 7
) o

RER 5 ZFBEHNARF B
“EENFENAZTHBZBEXK -
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Continued)

(i

(Continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities, stating at
the fair value and net carrying amount, arising

from the acquisition are as follows:

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

B.EEHERNERME @

(b) WEEKIEB AT @)

Gy (&)

1878 i B 2 B A PR B

O Wi s 7 2 A 2 1R B N R T %
BIIRABREERBENT

HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB N 65
Inventories 58 102
Amount due from a related company FEY— A& R RIFIA 1,712
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE ek
other receivables H b e U 3R I8 2,126
Cash at bank and in hand BITHER KRR 1,257
Other payables and accruals Hth A HIERERER (6,294)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,032)
Non-controlling interests IR IR R R (5)
Net liabilities acquired PR iE & EFE (1,037)
Goodwill BES 300,158
Direct cost relating to the acquisition BRAWE  BEEKAR (996)
Total cost of acquisition U i 2 HB R AR 298,125
Satisfied by: IATHNHE A A
Cash paid in 2008 RZZBZENFXH2HE 5,000
Convertible notes at fair value BRAFEYE 2 ATREEE
For the year ended 30 June 2009 HE_TZANGFAAA=THIEFE 107,335
For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-_ZT-ZTFA=+HILFE 185,790

298,125
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33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Continued)

(i

(Continued)

The fair values of convertible notes were
determined by the directors of the Company
with reference to valuation performed by Norton
Appraisals Limited and Roma Appraisals
Limited, independent valuers.

Included in turnover and profit for the year
ended 30 June 2009 is HK$252,797,000 and
HK$105,423,000 respectively since its
acquisition.

Had these business combinations been effected
at the beginning of the year ended 30 June
2009, the turnover of the group would have
been HK$253,336,000, and the profit for the
year ended 30 June 2009 would have been
HK$104,828,000.

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

BVGZEHRERERMEE

(b) WEEMT B~ B @

(%)

ABMEREZ A FHEDHANARE
E2EFUAEMEZERFEE
RAEMEFBERFEERARE
TZIEEERE -

BHE_ZTNFAA=TAHLFE
e TR R R o Bl e E B WEE A
Rz & F252,797,00078 7T M
#1105,423,000/8 7¢ °

WMZEXBEIRBE_SETNEF
NA=THIEFERARET - 8]
AEBEBE_ZTZENFAA=1+H
IEFE 7 & ¥ %0 5253,336,00078
I+ a A A104,828,000/8 7T e

2009

—TENF

HK$’000

FHT

Net cash inflow in respect of the ERWEZESRAFEE
acquisition:
Direct cost relating to B BEEKA
the acquisition (1,992)
Cash at bank and in hand acquired Fr BRI R R RE 2,117

125
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
34.COMMITMENTS 34, &
Commitments under operating leases K FH A RE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RMEER - AEERBTIRHELEEHEN 2
minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating AREEEMNESRBAOT
leases, which are payable as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE b N/N|
2010 2010 2009
= i 2T —B-%BF _TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHET FEx FBT
Within one year —&ER 2,485 4,667 268 2,143
In the second to fifth years, E-_EFAF
inclusive (EEMEBEEN) 1,051 2,580 - 268
3,536 7,247 268 2,411

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for the office premises and motor vehicles. The lease
typically runs for an initial year of three years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

Capital expenditure commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
above, the Group had the following commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

ERBERELEE
AE-HMBAR

Contracted, but not provided for:
Capital contribution

REMONREARERN 22 FE MTEH
T BO—RONPRU=F  GTE2HEREH
wEk - AREBEENEL

BARX HEE

B EXHIRZEERORRI - ARERBE

HR N AT A -

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
A%E KA

2010
—R-%F

HK$’000
TR

2009
—EENF
HK$’'000
FET

2010
—E-%%
HK$°000
FHx

2009
—EENF
HK$’000
FHET

to a subsidiary 260 18,796 - —
Purchases of intangible assets BERVEE - 908 - -
260 19,704 - —
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BE-T-TEAASTALEE

. FREALERS

(a)  In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BAFHRREMBOFLIRH G
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group RN - REBE TR TS A B A LR IE

had the following material transactions with the
following related parties based on the term mutually
agreed between the parties:

Sales to a related company:

M—EEERRHEE

FIH7T KA E 2 BFETT T AT ERX
R

Transaction value Balance outstanding

year ended As at
X7EHE AEEBEH
BEUATHHLEE ®

30 June 2010 30 June 2009 30 June 2010 30 June 2009
—B-%%
AAB=TH

“TTNF
NA=1H
HK$’000

—%-8F —ITAF
AAZtR  AA=TH
HK$’000 HK$’000

HK$°000
TR TAT TR TAT

Beijing Hengtai Technologies I RERERHR
Co., Ltd. (note 19) BREMRF
(Bi5E19) 1,685 268 1,230 313
Purchase from a related m—EREAR
company: e
Beijing Hengtai Technologies L REXNERBE
Co., Ltd. (note 23) BREMRH
(Bit3E23) 167,233 58,144 (17,471) (63,366)
Subcontracting fee to a SH-MBEEAR
related company: ZHBER
Beijing Hengtai Technologies T RERBREE
Co., Ltd. BREEATA 1,265 502 - -
Technical development fee S —HBEEARZ
to a related company: HITAZER
Beijing Hengtai Technologies I REREREHR
Co., Ltd. EREMLDA 671 1,917 - -
Equipment rental expenses SH—HBEARZ
to a related company: REHSER:
Beijing Hengtai Technologies L REXNERBE
Co., Ltd. BREARA - 184 - -
Loans to a related company: R—ABEAREN
Beijing Hengtai Technologies I RERBREE
Co., Ltd. (note 21) EREELH
(PEE21) - 455 1,993 1,974

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be
settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. There are no provisions held against
receivables from related parties (2009: Nil).

AEECH/BEMLEARSEE - I8
VR SR EAR - AEEY RSB K E R
BALFORGHREMEE (CETNF  E) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(o)

Other related party transactions

In addition to the above, the Group had entered into an
Intellectual Property Rights Permission Use Agreement
and a Cooperative Agreement (the “Agreements”) with
its related company, Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co.,
Ltd (“Beijing Hengtai”) on 8 April 2008 and 6 May 2008
respectively for a term of 20 years each. Pursuant to
the Agreements, the Group can use the intellectual
property rights registered by Beijing Hengtai while Beijing
Hengtai will provide training and technical support for
the Group and the customers of the Group. Beijing
Hengtai would provide free training and technical support
for the first three years and for the last six years of the
Agreements. However, the service fees would be
computed based on 3% of the gross audited revenue
of the Group by utilising the intellectual properties rights
under the Agreements for the fourth to fourteenth years,
but limited to HK$30 million every calendar year.

During the year, the Group recognised service income
of HK$36,494,000 (2009: HK$42,378,000) from the
above mentioned technical support services from
Beijing Hengtai.

&

5. 5FEALTR T @

EE-ZEFXNA=FTHILEE

() HMBREALRS
B EXPrESN  REBEERER A

EREREFMEERETRR ([IER
BHRDANR-_ZFZNFOANAR=
TEN\FRANBTLABERERT AL
Rt# k& i (%EH#E]) - 80
Wk R EI20%F - RIFZFE - AKE
Al EAIL R EZEEM Z ABERE - it
REFKAXAEERARER PR
AR MR o b RERGHEZX S hE
ZE=ZFRERANFRLERHIEI R
M FF - A - RIBEBRAEERE
ZEMHRAFNFRE +HFHEER
FBERES 2 REZW GBI Z3%ET
g - HEEFTEEA30,000,000% 7T

FR - REEH bl REBERF 2 HITX
RIS R RS Uk A 36,494,000/ 7T (—
TR NE : 42,378,000/ 7T) ©

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the ) AEBFEBERAEZFHM :
Group:
2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Short term employee benefits SEEBER 4,533 2,421
Post-employment benefits RIRIETRF
— defined contribution plans — TERMERETE 20 4
Share-based payments expenses  LARR D S 4 B - 3,127
Total compensation paid to BENETEERAB
key management personnel 2 HNREE 4,553 5,552

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 11 to the financial statements.

BAESNE 2 E— B RN BREM T
11
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36.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company was named as a joint defendant in a writ of
summons HCA 2630/2007 on 20 December 2007 alleging
that the Company:

(i) failed to honour a joint and several guarantee the
liability of a co-defendant under a forbearance
agreement to the extent of HK$25,000,000; and

(i)  failed to honour two cheques in the sum of
HK$2,500,000 each, totaling HK$5,000,000 plus
interests and costs.

The Directors have reviewed the claims against the
Company and based on the advice from the Group’s legal
counsel, are of the view that the Company has a valid
defence to the litigation and, accordingly, have not provided
for any claim arising from the litigation, other than the related
legal and other costs.

Apart from the actions against the Company disclosed
above, there were no other material outstanding writs and
litigations against the Group and/or the Company.

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial

36.

37.

e

=R

ARAR-FTLET-A-+AEFASH
HCA 2630,/ 2007 i B AHFEHEA - R

SREARR

() ReEARBRBCHENBIEHAREES
AZ B fE{EH £ % /525,000,0008 T2
KR RMERIER - R

(i) FEEHIRELFESA2,500,000% T2 MK
X ZE - 435,000,000 7T 0 EF B R
$ °

EXCRAHEARRRBZAR - WERK
SEZEZBRZERZRE  ARABHFAHEE
BHONEE  Fit > BRARZEZRREMBES
S AR EE AT HZFRRGEZHR
TR B -

B EXBEZ ST AR A Z R - BARE
AR AR, RAAT 2K T EEA
R -

EMIR

(@) €M IAz2E

instruments
2010 2009
—z-%5 —TBhE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Loan and receivables Bk EWFRIE

(including cash

(BRERTERERE)

at bank and in hand) 776,672 393,929
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B oy A 469,787 208,405
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€M T R @

(b) Financial risk management (b) IR EIE B EREEK

objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing loan from a shareholder and cash at
bank. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate of loan from a shareholder is
disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
Directors of the Company believe its exposure to
interest rate risk is minimal. Cash at bank earns
interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits
rates.

The Company does not have any derivative
instruments to reduce its economic exposure to
changes in interest rates.

AEBEFECRMTIARERE —EK
RZNBERRBITFER - ZEFLHT
AZTIZENRRAKBEZEEERE
T o ANEBEZEBEERRENERES
FRMGRMEERABDEAEEERE
Koo

HASEZSRTAMSIBzEERR
AREER - SNERR - EERRER
BESRR EFERINIEEEX
FREBZBER - amT e

EIESEN

KA - BBRRZERZFERPBHRE
MizE26HEE - AAREERR/EEYZ
MEREREMR - |RITEFRFRITEA
T# SR R 277 B F R BREUA B o

A2 B3 KR FR A 67 4 T B AR F)
¥RDZEEYE -
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€M T R @

(b) Financial risk management (b) IR EIE B EREEK

objectives and policies (continueq)
Foreign exchange risk

The Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollar and the functional currencies of the majority of
the subsidiaries are Renminbi. The Group’s
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables
are mainly denominated in these currencies.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not
significant, the Group does not actively hedge this
foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than the functional
currency to ensure that net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level, and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at 30 June 2010 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(%)
S EE /2 Bz

RRBZINEEEE RAETT - HAED K
BREIZHEEEBARE - AEEZ
X5 BRERR R EMNBRREZA Lt
BH¥EHE -

AEEEETHINEHRE  REEF
BEAZINERERRE - AT - AREI
EBAR 2FINERBRIK - BIALE
) B A3 & 5L S G R B TR AT 1T B
e

AEBEHRAANEEEAINZEE
RBEZEBEENRAE  NERAAR
ZHERBREFNAEZIKE  ABRE
FEREELHERINNERAR -

=& mE R

RIZE-—ZFRA=1TH XEERY
FHREBITHEEEMRZ B HER
TREERYZESEERR - /K4
MBMRKMIZEEEZREE -
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.2M TR @
(b) R REIEE £

ZREBE

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (continueq)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, credit limits and credit terms granted to
customers should be approved by delegated officers
and follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as at 30 June 2010 is mainly from five
major customers which accounted for 85% (2009:
88%) of trade receivables. The Group has closely
monitored the recoverability of trade receivables and
taken effective measures to ensure timely collection
of outstanding balances.

Liquidity risk

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash
and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

(%)

EERE (&)

BEERERER 2 FERREER
K RAEFPROZEERERMEEHRA
RIEE 2 ANBHLE - WERERETTEI A
WEIEHER - i AEEEEER
BERSHRENESRENRSEERZ
AR E SRR ARER LT BE R Bl & B AR
HRSRERE - At - ARAEER
R AEEZEERBRAKEE -

RBEEZEERBRER - RAKNMN
HFTREBEREETFRRBTIRSE
B2 IRTT -

RIZE-—TFRA=1TH TEEEK
B zEH EERREIEREAATE
B mEHBRIERZ285% (ZTFN
F 1 88%) - AEE DT EREURN
Z FIU BB R BREUE e B - PATE(R
B K B Ui (3] 2K o [O] R 3R

RBEESRR

AEERREBERAZAERERE
B NENERBHESHT -

TREIAKEEZERABRTENF
HlemFETESBABEMS @ ZXIHR
BASERAKZREZECHABIH
FERHZERMBBERAT AR RER
8 o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-TZ-ZFXA=1+TBLFE
37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 37. €8I H #»®
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEEMEE B ZERBER
objectives and policies (continued) (#)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SR (&)
THE GROUP KE
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than but less
amount cash flow or on demand 2years than 5 years
BRERE
BeRE —£R —EN0E MENL
REE B REREXR MEUA HEFHR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TET TER
2010 —Z2-2F
Trade payables FETER IR 223,689 223,689 223,689 - -
Other payables HitiER5E
and accruals RIEETE A 38,173 38,173 38,173 - -
Obligations under BERANER
finance leases 1,231 1,397 430 430 537
Loan from a shareholder RE—ZREZ EX 30,000 30,742 30,742 - -
Convertible notes payable  JE{F AT R Z & 176,694 264,725 - - 264,725
469,787 558,726 293,034 430 265,262
THE COMPANY PiIN/NE]
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than but less
amount cash flow or on demand 2years than 5 years
ERFEME
BeRE —£R —EN0E MENL
REE aE FEREXR MELR HEFHR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TET TER
2010 —Z2-2F
Other payables Hib B FHIE
and accruals RIEGTER 1,639 1,639 1,639 - -
Loan from a shareholder RE—&BREZEH 30,000 30,742 30,742 - -
Convertible notes payable & AIRRZE 176,694 264,725 - - 264,725

208,333 297,106 32,381 - 264,725




1878 i B 2 B A PR B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ErE

For the year ended 30 June 2010 BE-Z-— T A=tHILFE

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 37. & T H »
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIHEEE B ZERBUER
objectives and policies (continued) ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&)

THE GROUP REH
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted  Within 1 year less than but less
amount cash flow  or on demand 2years  than 5 years
GLE i —ER —FNE WEN £
KREE Ren2gg FIREK MEAA AFHUA
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET FER TER
2009 —ZENEF
Trade payables FERTER 168,746 168,746 168,746 - -
Other payables Hib B HIE
and accruals RIEER 9,232 9,232 9,232 - -
Obligation under BMERHEAR

finance lease 427 507 107 107 293

Loan from a shareholder K& —&IE 2 &% 30,000 30,000 30,000 - -
208,405 208,485 208,085 107 293
THE COMPANY PiN/NES]
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year
amount cash flow or on demand
B RIFEHTIR —F A
SREE ReRERE SR EsK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
2009 —ZETH
Other payables and accruals E #b & FIB & fE:T & 1,093 1,093 1,093
Loan from a shareholder KE—BRRZER 30,000 30,000 30,000
31,093 31,093 31,093
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€M T R @

(b) Financial risk management (b) IR EIE B EREEK
objectives and policies (continued) (&)
Fair value NS
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the N B R AR AR PR AN SR S A AR B
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or eI AZRAMEREANR_-_Z-F
amortised cost are not materially different from their FRZZBZNFAA=ZFTHZAFET
fair values as at 30 June 2010 and 2009 except as EERNER  WTHERRIN
follows:
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY REBKNAQTE

2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNF

Carrying Fair Carry Fair

amount value amount value
FREE AFE AREE ANEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TRT THET THETT FHETT

Convertible notes payable JEAS AT IR R iR 176,694 211,112 — —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2010

38.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

ot

E-R-REANASTALER

PERIOD
Placing and Top-up Subscription

On 14 September 2010, Team Effort Investments Limited
(“Vendor”), the Company and an independent placing agent
(“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant
to which the Vendor has agreed to place, and the Placing
Agent has agreed to procure not less than six placees, on
a best effort basis, for the purchase of up to 200,000,000
Shares at the Placing Price of HK$0.75 per Placing Share
(“Placing”).

On the same day, the Vendor and the Company entered
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Vendor
has agreed to subscribe for such number of subscription
shares which is equivalent to the number of Placing Shares
actually placed under the Placing, being a maximum
number of 200,000,000 Subscription Shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$0.75 per Subscription Share
(“Subscription”). Details of these are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 September 2010.

The Placing was completed on 16 September 2010 and the
Subscription was completed on 24 September 2010.

RESARLERNTIBER

—E—FTFANAF+MA - Team Effort
Investments Limited ([E 7)) « AR R KR—%
BURERE (BAERED AT EEHE
It BEFRERE  MEEREREERAS
NRED DR ANBERAIRESREERH0.75
BT 2 B & (B E & % 200,000,000/ % 1
([BeEFEHE]) -

FA - BFEARFLRERZE Bt B
7 RAEBRERRERN0.75B T RBERE
HERRBEESHREREE 2 RERNBE
2 R - BlE %200,000,000/% EﬁﬂxT
(IREBEHE]) - A ELFBEZFBHARAR
AT ZFNATHBEZAER

REFER_T-TFNAATBZEK MR
BERCOR_Z—TFNLA-tHBAREK -



HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group AEEREVBFESF 2 EEREEGEREZN
for each of the five financial years is as follows: ™

RESULTS E |

Year ended 30 June

HEAA=THLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EENE —FFRLE —RRN\F  —TTNFE  CB-BF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT THT TET THT TR
Turnover ¥R 8,037 16,101 32,821 339,365 653,260
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BEA(B]) /%7 (2,482) (2,995) (15,838) 123,435 204,375
Taxation IR - - - (5,429) (8,730)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(E8E) S EH (2,482) (2,995) (15,838) 118,006 195,645
Attributed to: He:
Equity holders of the Company ARAAREREA (2,482 (2,995) (15,838) 110,698 181,042
Minority interests DEREER - - - 7,308 14,603
(2,482) (2,995) (15,838) 118,006 195,645
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FREX(BE) /BF
(HK cents) () (0.53) (0.64) (2.86) 11.28 11.96
Diluted earnings per share BREERT
(HK cents) (A1) N/A @A N/A T N/A T 11.27 10.63
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREGE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—ELRF e “TTN\F ZTTNE —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET BT BT TET
Non-current assets ERBEE 68 478 37,316 354,032 1,022,244
Current assets MEEE 5,106 3,398 30,352 349,088 551,757
Current liabilities mEAEE (292) (1,944) (1,340) (213,605) (306,536)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - - (3,062) (179,847)
Net assets BEFE 4,882 1,932 66,328 486,453 1,087,618
Equity attributable to equity ALRBREREA
holders of the Company L 4,882 1,032 66,328 477,024 1,058,043
Minority interests DEREER - - - 9,429 29,575

Net assets BEEFE 4,882 1,932 66,328 486,453 1,087,618
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Heng Xin China Holdings Limited
BESHEZERERDE
Unit 8, 43/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BRBERE 16 ER SR 43123
(852) 3678 5500

Tel &3
Fax {5 : (852) 3178 9884
Website #81F : www.hengxinchina.com.hk






	COVER
	INSIDE COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CORPORATE CHART
	STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
	AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

	SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	INSIDE BACK COVER
	BACK COVER

